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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein
or this report misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 to our
shareholders and investors.

Since early 2020, the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic
spread worldwide and caused significant threats to the global
health and economy. The prolonged COVID-19 pandemic
in 2021, had resulted in, among other things, ongoing travel
restrictions, prolonged closures of workplaces, lockdowns in
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has continued to pose the risk
of global economic slowdown. There is still a high degree of
uncertainty about the pandemic, and the outlook for the global
economic recovery is still slow. The economy in Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area and the Group’s
major customers have inevitably been affected. However,
the Group maintained its market leader position in Macau
and recorded the total revenue increased by approximately
104.7% to approximately HK$61,128,000 and turning net
loss of approximately HK$2,847,000 in 2020 into net profit of
approximately HK$21,531,000 in 2021.

Looking forward to 2022, a spike in infections driven by a
combination of the Omicron and Delta variants of Covid-19 has
led to reinstate the draconian quarantine and social-distancing
measures in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area.
The Company anticipates it will face a lot of challenges from the
threats and uncertainty of the outbreak of the Omicron variant
or more mutations in forthcoming years. In response to the
uncertainties of the persistent pandemic effect, we will consider
to tighten our control over the operating costs in which its
effectiveness will be reviewed from time to time to mitigate the
impact of COVID-19 pandemic on our performance.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBRE

In addition, on January 18, 2022, the Macau Legislative Assembly
published a draft bill entitted Amendment to Law No. 16/2001
to amend Macau’s gaming law (the “Gaming Law”). We are
actively monitoring developments, with respect to the Macau
government’s Gaming Law amendment and concession renewal
process, and assessing the potential impact on Macau economy,
affected industries, including but not limited to tourism and hotel
industries. We will continue to pay attention to the developments
and the potential impact on the spending over advertising and
marketing from our major customers. The Group will remain
resilient and is cautiously optimistic of our business.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our Directors, our dedicated management and staff for
their wavering support and commitment. We would also like to
express our gratitude for the continuing support and trust of our
shareholders, business partners, readers and customers. We
hope to join hands with each other to achieve improvements and
delivery success continuously.

Lui Man Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$61,128,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing an increase of approximately 104.7% from
approximately HK$29,866,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020. The Group recorded total gross profit of approximately
HK$40,171,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021,
representing an increase of approximately 165.3% from
approximately HK$15,144,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020. The Group’s profit attributable to the owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$21,531,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 compared to the loss attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately HK$2,847,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Profit per share of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$4.98 cents. The Directors do not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in (i) sales and distribution of
publications, and the sales of print and online advertising spaces
and provision of advertising design and related production
services, (i) sales of billboard advertising spaces and provision
of advertisement sourcing agency services, and (i) promotion of
products and services by organizing exhibitions and shows.

Publications and Advertising Business

During the year, the Group owned and published six publications,
including Exmoo News, Travel Macao, Motoz Trader, Motoz
Trader (Free), Shopping Monthly (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine),
and Shopping Monthly (Free) (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

The publications of the Group cover readership of different
market segments and age groups by focusing on different areas
of interests in lifestyle, including automotive, beauty and fashion,
property, dining and electronic products.

o Exmoo News is a Chinese-language daily newspaper
(published every Monday to Friday) published in Macau
which has a wide range of readership by covering different
areas including Macau daily local news as well as Hong
Kong, the PRC and international news, finance and
economy, entertainment, sports, fashion and lifestyle,
cultural knowledge, etc. As at the date of this annual report,
the distribution points of Exmoo News in Macau covering
commercial buildings, luxury apartments, banks, airport
and lounge, ports, petrol kiosk, food centre, car parks,
universities and governmental offices, etc. and Exmoo News
is one of the publications with highest circulation and widest
coverage in Macau.

° Travel Macao is a Chinese-language travel leisure
fortnightly magazine (published alternate Friday) published
in Macau which provides comprehensive information to
readers relating to travel, dining, shopping, culture and
entertainment in Macau. It is distributed in major terminals in
Hong Kong and Macau as well as certain hotels in Macau.
In addition to the printed magazine distributed in Macau and
Hong Kong, Travel Macau also provides website version,
digital social media platforms such as Facebook page and
WeChat platform to readers.

° Motoz Trader is a fortnightly magazine that focuses on new
car models, second-hand car market and properties while
also provides lifestyle information including dinning, fashion
and beauty.

° Motoz Trader (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that is
extracted from Motoz Trader.

° Shopping Monthly is a fortnightly magazine and focuses on
updated information on consumer products.

° Shopping Monthly (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that
is extracted from Shopping Monthly.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue generated
from the publications and advertising business amounted to
approximately HK$29,953,000, increased from approximately
HK$21,478,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outdoor Advertising Business

The Group has been diversifying its revenue stream by developing
the billboard advertising business (the “Billboard Advertising
Business”). During the year, the Group cooperated with certain
business partners and entered into continuing contracts for usage
of the advertisement spaces of billboards in Macau and Zhuhai,
namely Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau-Bridge (“HZMB”) Macau
Section Passenger Clearance Building for a term of 65 months
from 1 January 2020 and Zhuhai Hengqgin Passenger Clearance
Building for a term of one year till 31 August 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue
generated from the outdoor advertising business amounted to
approximately HK$28,940,000 increased from approximately
HK$3,714,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Exhibition and Trade Show Business and Related
Services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue generated
from the exhibition and trade show business and related services
amounted to approximately HK$2,235,000, decreased from
approximately HK$4,674,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2022, the Group will pay close attention to
the uncertainties in the economic environment, and stay alert to
formulate strategies to pursue steady development and strive for
generous returns to our shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Total revenue increased by approximately 104.7% from
approximately HK$29,866,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately HK$61,128,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021. It was mainly due to the Group extended its
customers base in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay
Area. The revenue generated from publications and advertising
business increased to approximately HK$29,953,000 as
compared with approximately HK$21,478,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The revenue generated from outdoor advertising business
increased to approximately HK$28,940,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 as compared with approximately HK$3,714,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The revenue of the Group contributed from the exhibition
and trade show business and related services, amounted to
approximately HK$2,235,000 or 3.7% of the total revenue of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the cost of sales of the
publications and advertising business and exhibition and trade
show business and related services amounted to approximately
HK$20,213,000 or 96.4% and approximately HK$744,000 or
3.6%, respectively of the total cost of sales.

Gross Profit

Total gross profit increased by approximately 165.3% from
approximately HK$15,144,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately HK$40,171,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021. The increase in the gross profit was mainly due
to the expansion of publications and advertising business and
outdoor advertising business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income

Other income decreased by approximately HK$1,577,000 from
approximately HK$1,816,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately HK$239,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
one-off nature of subsidies granted under the Employment
Support Scheme by The Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government and The Macau Special Administrative
Region Government in 2020, while no such subsidies granted in
2021.

Operating Expenses

The operating expenses of the Group decreased slightly by
approximately 3.1% from approximately HK$15,401,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$14,922,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Finance Costs

Finance costs of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$3,279,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021, compared
to approximately HK$3,660,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the Group was approximately
HK$1,655,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021, compared
to approximately HK$11,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$21,531,000.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure
There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2021. The share capital of
the Company only comprises ordinary shares.
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As at 31 December

M12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Current assets mENEE 35,609 17,636
Current liabilities mENAE 35,859 18,830
Current ratio BN E 1.0 0.9

The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately 1.0 times as compared to approximately 0.9 times
as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$10,949,000 (2020:
approximately HK$3,212,000).

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings

over shareholders’ fund, was approximately 144% as at 31
December 2021 (2020: -348%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade Receivables Turnover Days

The trade receivables increased from approximately
HK$5,319,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$14,712,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the trade receivable turnover days increased from
approximately 65 days for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately 88 days for the year ended 31 December 2021.
All outstanding trade receivable balances are reviewed by the
Group’s sales and marketing department on a monthly basis to
ensure that any overdue receivable is promptly monitored and
appropriate collection actions are taken.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit evaluation of the financial conditions
of its clients. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its
funding requirements.

Significant Investments Held

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no other
significant investment held by the Group.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
other plans for material investments and capital assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Joint Ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and joint ventures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material pledge of
assets.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments.

Information on Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2021, the employee headcount (not including
Directors) of the Group was 27 (2020: 33) and the total staff
costs, including Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2021, amounted to approximately HK$7,299,000
(2020: approximately HK$9,477,000).

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice. In order to attract and
retain valuable employees, the Group reviews the performance
of its employees annually and such review results will be taken
into account while having the annual salary review and promotion
appraisal. In addition to a basic salary, bonuses would be paid
to staff with reference to the financial performance of the Group.
The Group would also provide trainings or seminars relating to
publication business and offer options that may be granted to
the employees under the share option scheme. The Group pays
commission to its sales and marketing staff which is calculated
based on an agreed percentage of sharing specified in their
respective contracts in accordance of the total monthly sales
solicited by such staff which is arrived at mutual agreement
between the Company and the respective staff.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to
be implemented across the world. It has brought
about additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and may impact the Group’s operations and
financial position. The Group has been closely monitoring
the impact from COVID-19 on the Group’s businesses and
has commenced to put in place various measures.

Based on the information currently available, the Directors
confirm that there has been no material adverse change in
the financial and operating position of the Group up to the
date of this report. The Group will pay close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and perform further
assessment of its impact and take relevant measures.

On 27 January 2022, Excellent Success Investments
Limited as the placing agent (the “Excellent”) and the
Company entered into a placing agreement (the “2022
Placing Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company
proposes to offer for subscription and the Excellent has
agreed to procure not less than six placees on a best effort
basis to subscribe for up to 86,400,000 placing shares
(the “New Placing Shares”) at a price of HK$0.09 per
New Placing Share. The New Placing Shares had been
allotted and issued under the general mandate on 3 March
2022. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 27 January 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

On 3 March 2022, the placing was completed in
accordance with the terms of the 2022 Placing Agreement.
An aggregate of the New Placing Shares, representing
approximately 16.67% of the issued share capital of the
Company immediately after completion of the placing, have
been successfully placed to not less than six Placees at
the price of HK$0.09 per the New Placing Share. The net
proceeds from the placing, after deduction of all relevant
expenses (including but not limited to placing commission,
legal expenses and disbursements), are approximately
HK$7.6 million.

The Company intends to use the net proceeds for
expenditure for current business development of the
Group. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 3 March 2022.

The Directors consider that the Placing will strengthen the
Group’s financial position and represents an opportunity
to raise additional funding for the business operations of
the Group and will, and enlarge Shareholders’ base of the
Company which may in turn enhance the liquidity of the
Shares, and provide working capital to the Group to meet
any financial obligations of the Group without any interest
burden, within a relatively shorter time frame and at lower
costs when compared with other means of fundraising.

As at the date of this report, the net proceeds from the
Placing have not been utilised.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS
Executive Director

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin, aged 41, was appointed as executive
Director of the Group since 16 October 2019. Mr. Hung has over
10 years of experience in media and advertisement industries.
He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Journalism and
Communication from Chu Hai University in 2005.

Mr. Hung was appointed as a deputy managing director of Macau
Federal Commercial Association of Convention & Exhibition
Industry in September 2019 until 2021. He served as a media
production director of Central — Companhia de Communicacao
International, LDA, a company incorporated in Macau, which
is principally engaged in media, advertisement and exhibition
business from April 2019 to September 2019. He served as a
business development director of Pentalker Studio Publication
Co., Ltd., which is a book publisher providing cultural and travel
information in Macau from July 2016 to April 2019. He also
served as a deputy editor-in-chief of “NEW GEN. Monthly” of New
Generation Culture Association from June 2017 to July 2018. He
was also an editor in chief of Central International Communication
Co, Ltd, which is principally engaged in media, advertisement
and exhibition business from June 2011 to July 2016. Mr.
Hung served as an editor of Wide Connection Limited (being a
subsidiary of New Media Group Holdings Limited, now known
as Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 708), which was principally
engaged in magazine publishing, from April 2010 to June 2011.
He also served as an editor in chief of Prefix Publication Limited,
which is a book publisher providing travel, leisure, lifestyle and
cultural information in Hong Kong from March 2009 to April 2010.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lui Man Wah, aged 40, was appointed as non-executive
Director of the Group since 16 October 2019. Mr. Lui is also the
executive director of Sun International Group Limited (a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8029). Mr.
Lui obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in business studies from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2004 and obtained a
Master of Commerce degree from Macquarie University in 2005.
Mr. Lui has over 10 years of experience in securities and financial
institutions. He is experienced in managing listed companies in
Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEEFET

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 16 October 2019.
Ms. Wong possesses over 25 years of experience in finance,
accounting and company secretarial services experience in Hong
Kong. She obtained a master degree of arts in parent education
and a professional diploma in guidance and counselling from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a postgraduate diploma in
early childhood education from The Hong Kong Baptist University
and a bachelor degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Wong is a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom, a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member of
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Wong is currently the group financial controller of RNP
Jewelry Design Limited, which engages in the trading and
manufacturing of jewelry products, since March 2015. Ms. Wong
is responsible for corporate accounting, finance and corporate
secretarial matters. Ms. Wong worked in H.C. Wong & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising), responsible for providing
corporate secretarial services from August 2007 to March 2015,
with her last positions as senior manager. She served as an
accounting officer Il of the government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region from April 1997 to May 2007. She also
served as an accounting manager of Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited from September 1996 to April 1997 and a
staff accountant at Ernst & Young from August 1994 to August
1996.

Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip, aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Group since 16
October 2019. Mr. Wong has over 10 years of experience
in management and business operation. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and obtained a Master
Degree of Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2010. Mr. Wong is currently the chief executive
officer of YOOV Internet Technology Limited (“YOOV”), which
specialize in providing cloud-based enterprise resource planning
(ERP) solutions to small and medium-sized enterprises (SME),
since January 2016. Prior to the formation of YOOV, Mr. Wong
operated a number of English learning centres in Hong Kong
from December 2012 to December 2016. He also served as
an operations manager of Nan Fung Resources Limited from
March 2012 to November 2012. He worked in the Real Estate
Asia Division of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Hong Kong branch) from
July 2007 to March 2011 with his last position as real estate
relationship manager.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Man Yeung, aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Group since 16
October 2019. Mr. Lee has over 13 years of experience in
business management in the construction industry. Mr. Lee
obtained a certificate in Business Administration and a diploma
in Business Management (Banking & Finance) from Holmesglen
Institute of TAFE in Melbourne, Australia in May 1999 and August
2000 respectively. Mr. Lee worked at Hang Tat Engineering
Company Limited as a project manager from 2003 to 2010. He
was the business owner of APEX Construction & Development
Limited from September 2008 to May 2015. He is the founder
and has been a director of Le Point Management Company
Limited, a company principally engaged in the business of
management of restaurants and hospitality group in China since
January 2015. Mr. Lee is an independent non-executive director
of Pak Wing Group (Holdings) Limited (a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8316) since September
2018. He is also an engineering consultant of Chilego Engineering
Co., Limited since December 2010.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from Directors, save as otherwise set out in this
Report, there is no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and
possible risk and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in
Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report respectively. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s business
operation made continuous effort on minimizing damage to
the environment and ensuring employees’ well-being. No non-
compliance in relation to environmental and social aspects was
recorded. Engagement with stakeholders has resulted in raised
concerns on key material issues, which include (i) employee
health and safety, (i) labour standards, (i) intellectual property
(“IP”) rights, (iv) customer data protection and (v) anti-corruption.
These aspects had already been managed by the Group and
the Group will continue to keep close communication with
its stakeholders for advancing its environmental, social and
governance management.

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange no later than three months after the publication of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the state of affairs of the Group covering the same period
are set out in the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 172 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not have any reserve
available for distribution to the shareholders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 58.1% of the total sales for the year ended 31
December 2021 and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 18.6%. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 72.1%
of the total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 48.5%.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the year
was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its ultimate holding
company or any subsidiary of such ultimate holding company a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling

Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip

Mr. Lee Man Yeung

In accordance with Article 84(1), three directors will retire at the

forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) and, all of them,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out
on pages 17 to 19 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

All independent non-executive Directors have entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company under which their term of
appointment is three years.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary
of such ultimate holding company was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with the Director was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme disclosed in section “Share
Option Scheme” in this report and Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there is no
other material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management,
having regard to market competitiveness, individual performance
and achievement. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible participants,
details of the scheme is set out in section “Share Option
Scheme” in this report and Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group adopted the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 February 2015, under which the Directors may
grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for the Company’s
shares, subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The Share Option Scheme will expire on 16 February 2025.
For further details, please refer to Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 16 October 2019, all of the share options granted have
been cancelled.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As far as the Directors are aware of, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective close
associates has any business or interest that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts
of interests which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(A) Interest in Shares of the Company
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(A) RAERFRMDAER

Approximate
percentage of
issued Share

Capital of
Name of Director Capacity Interest in Shares the Company
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Mr. Lui Man Wah Interests in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 320,023,300 (L) 74.08%
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Notes:

ik Mr. Lui Man Wah is the ultimate beneficial owner of these
Shares, of which Shares is directly held by Source Creation
International Limited (“Source Creation”). The entire issued share
capital of Source Creation are wholly owned by Mr. Lui Man
Wah.

2. Duplication occurs in respect of the interests held by Mr. Lui
Man Wah and Source Creation which they represented the same
block of Shares.

3. As at 31 December 2021, the Company has 432,000,000
Shares in issue.

Abbreviation: “L” stands for long positions.
(B) Interests in Share Options of the Company

Details of the particulars of interests (all being personal
interests) in share options held during the year ended
31 December 2021 by Directors (and/or their respective
associate(s)) to subscribe for Shares of the Company
granted/exercisable under the share option scheme of
the Company are disclosed in the section “Share Option
Scheme” of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors nor chief executives had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or were otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had or were deemed or taken to have the following
interests and/or short positions in the shares or the underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares or Underlying Shares

ESHRE

FERREREMALREARTREG KR
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Number of  percentage of
Shares or  shareholding
Underlying Shares interests  Note
RAOSEBRAHE RESOEIL M

Name Nature of interest
He/ 4% Bt

Source Creation International Limited Beneficial owner
BRI AR AR ERBAA

Note:

1. As at 31 December 2021, the Company has 432,000,000 shares in
issues.

Abbreviation: “L” stands for long positions.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other persons who had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, as at 31
December 2021.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions constitute continuing connected transactions
exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had not entered into any
connected transaction which is subject to the disclosure
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the
date of this Annual Report, there was sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the GEM Listing Rules.

INTERESTS OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As at 31 December 2021, as notified by the Company’s
compliance adviser, Lego Corporate Finance Limited (“Lego”),
neither Lego nor any of its directors, employees or close
associates had any interest in the share capital of the Company or
any member of the Group (including options or rights to subscribe
for such securities) or otherwise in relation to the Company which
is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR =B

The consolidated financial statements for the Reporting Period $REENGAVERERCHEEERN - &6
have been audited by McM will retire and, being eligible, offer REERRBFAE FRTHW A ERETE
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general f - EFEZ TR BV REEEEFTHEFHH
meeting. A resolution to re-appoint McM and to authorize JREEBREERRAFAE HIEE -

the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board REESS

LUI MAN WAH TE

Chairman B E

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022 EH 0 20229F3A31H

TR EREE (ZER) SRAT
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SREABE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices in order to safeguard the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, the Company
has adopted the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Codes”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance.
During the year, the Company had been in compliance with the
CG Codes as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules,
except for the provision detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same person. The Company currently
has no CEO. All duties of CEO are shared among the executive
Directors, the Board believes that the present arrangement
enables the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently
and effectively in response to the changing environment.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing
expectations of shareholders and investors.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings concerning securities
transactions by the Directors as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the
Directors, and the Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding Director’s securities transactions during the year ended
31 December 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the Directors
and officers of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which has the
responsibility for leadership and monitoring of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.

The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholders’ value. The Board has delegated the daily operation
and day-to-day management of the Group as well as the
implementation of the Board’s policies and strategies to the
executive Director and management of the Group.

All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions objectively
and acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
at all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
one executive Director, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) as named
below. An updated list of the Directors identifying their roles
and functions is posted on GEM’s website and the Company’s
website from time to time.

Executive Director

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling

Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip

Mr. Lee Man Yeung

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors” section of this Annual Report.
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SREABE

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
Ms. Wong Chi Ling has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as
to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently. The Board
provides the Group with diversified industry expertise, advised the
management on strategic development and the Board maintains
high standard of compliance with financial and other mandatory
reporting requirements as well as provides adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) between members of the
Board.

Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which can be reserved to the Board and
delegated to management or Board committees. The Board
delegates day to-day operations of the Group to management
while reserving certain key matters, mainly relating to the approval
and monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies, policies and
business plans; and overseeing and evaluating the performance
of the Group. It is also responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its businesses by directing and supervising the
Group’s affairs. Board committees for specific functions are also
set up to ensure efficient Board operations. The composition and
functions of each Board committee and their major roles and
functions are described below. The final decision still rests with
the Board unless otherwise provided for in the terms of reference
of the relevant committees.

Board Diversity

In compliance with the requirement set out in Code Provision
A.5.6 of the CG Codes, the Company has adopted diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its approach to
achieve diversity on the Board, and a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company
will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

The following table shows Directors’ attendance at Board,
committees and shareholders meetings held in the financial year
ended 31 December 2021:
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Executive Director HTES
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Non-executive Director ~ FHTEE
Mr. Lui Man Wah BXELE 24124 N/ATNE A 11 11 11 11
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Directors
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Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip HERRAE 24/24 9/9 1N 11 11 11
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The Group adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
that included executive Directors, non-executive Director and
INED presented in person or through electronic means of
communication regularly at least four time every year. During
regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed and
formulated the overall strategies of the Group, monitored financial
performances and reviewed the financial results, as well as
discussed and decided on other significant matters. The Board
will also meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on
a particular matter is required.

Generally, notice of at least fourteen days should be given for a
Company'’s regular Board meeting. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice should be given. The Directors will receive the
agenda and accompanying documents tabled at the meeting
before regular Board meetings and will be given an opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for discussion from the Board
meetings, Board committees met on other occasions during
which matter relating to their respective terms of reference
was discussed. The Board committee members would receive
notice, agenda and documents to be tabled for consideration in
advance of each meeting in accordance with the CG Codes and
respective terms of reference.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
THE DIRECTORS

The executive Director has entered into an executive Director’s
service agreement with the Company and each of the non-
executive Director and INEDs has entered into a letter of
appointment with specific terms with the Company with an initial
term of three years, subject to renewal by the Company. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles
of Association.
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Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of Members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at the meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the INEDs in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors consider that all the INEDs remain
independent.

DIRECTORS’ PARTICIPATION IN CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL TRAININGS

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors
will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will
be issued to directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors
received training on the following areas with an emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in
compliance with the requirement of the CG Codes on continuous
professional development:

REZE2021F12A31HILEE 220 EBETMN
TEBFEEXERBAGTLEEATIAR

EZLTRABEZEZAR B MBESEL
=l

Corporate Governance/
updates on Laws, Rules
& Regulations

EER BEEE -

RAIRER
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Hung Yuen Kin RRRfESL A v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lui Man Wah AXERLE 4
Independent non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Ms. Wong Chi Ling =g oaun v
Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip =EERLA v
Mr. Lee Man Yeung $X/$§'E$ v

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established the audit committee (“Audit
Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
and corporate governance & risk management committee
(“CGRM Committee”) for overseeing various particular aspects of
the Group’s affairs.

All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
such Board committees are available on GEM’s website and the
Company’s website. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resource to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The lists of the chairman and members of each Board committee
are set out in “Board Composition”.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph C.3.3
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules has been adopted. As at the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Ms. Wong Chi Ling (Chairlady), Mr. Wong Ling Yan
Philip and Mr. Lee Man Yeung have appropriate professional
qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, nine meetings of
the Audit Committee were held by the committee to review
the quarterly, half yearly and the annual results. The principal
responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing of the
financial results of the Group, the accounting principles, the
scope of non-audit services provided by the external auditors and
its independence, and be responsible for all the matters relating
to the continuing connected transaction of the Company. The
Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatments adopted
by the Group and, to the best of its ability assured itself that
the disclosures of the financial information in the Company’s
quarterly, interim and annual reports comply with the applicable
accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23
January 2015 pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip
(Chairman), Mr. Lui Man Wah, Ms. Wong Chi Ling and Mr. Lee
Man Yeung.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management; reviewing their remuneration packages, approving
the management’s proposal of remuneration packages by
reference to corporate goals, objectives and market practices.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee were held to review the structure
and policy of remuneration of the Group and approve the
remuneration package of Directors. The emoluments of the
Directors are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
according to the Directors’ respective responsibilities, individual
performance and prevailing market conditions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23
January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5.2 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man
Wah (Chairman), Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip
and Mr. Lee Man Yeung.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, the Board Diversity Policy, the Policy for the nomination of
directors, making recommendations to the Board on nomination,
rotation and re-appointment of Directors, and assessing the
independence of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee were held to review the structure, size,
composition and diversification (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board, review the policy of Directors’
nomination related matters, make recommendations to the Board
on the proposal of reappointment of Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The attendance records of each committee member in the
Nomination Committee meeting held during the year are set out
in Directors’ Attendance at Board and General Meetings section
above.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the
criteria for selection and process of nomination of Directors. In
accordance with the nomination policy, in assessing and selecting
a candidate for acting as a Director, the criteria to be considered
including but not limited to the following:

- Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience;

- Commitment to attending the meetings and participating in
relevant training and other board associated activities;

- Requirement for the Board to have independent Directors
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules;

- Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning.

The nomination policy also sets out the nomination process and
procedures, including but not limited to:

1. ldentify and evaluate the candidate based on the
abovementioned criteria upon receipt of the proposal of
appointment or re-appointment of Director; and

2. Recommend the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate as a Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in terms of skills,
professional experience, educational background, knowledge,
culture, age and gender. The main objective of the policy is to
maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.
In accordance with the board diversity policy, a truly diverse
Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
regional and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of the Directors. These differences will be
considered in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
All Board appointments will be based on merit while considering
diversity (including gender diversity).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee (the “CGRM Committee”) Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference. The Corporate
Governance Committee was renamed as Corporate Governance
& Risk Management Committee on 6 January 2016 to add in
risk management functions. As at the date of this annual report,
the CGRM Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman),
Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip and Mr. Lee Man
Yeung.

The primary functions of the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee include, among others, reviewing and
making recommendation to the Board in respect of the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with any requirement, direction and
regulation that may be prescribed by the Board, contained in
any constitutional documents of the Group, or imposed by the
GEM Listing Rules, other applicable laws, regulations, rules and
codes, and ensuring that appropriate monitoring systems are
in place to ensure compliance with the relevant internal control
systems, processes and policies, oversee the effectiveness
of the procedures of the internal control system of the Group,
monitoring the implementation of the Group’s plan to maintain
high compliance with own risk management standards, providing
guideline to the management on risk management and to set
up procedures to identify, assessing and managing material risk
factors, and ensuring the management discharge its responsibility
in establishing an effective risk management system.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of the
CGRM Committee was held to review the Group’s corporate
governance practice and oversee of the Company’s compliance
with the CG codes, to review and discuss about the internal
control procedures and finding of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS ZEETE <

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering and reviewing HEi#ZZE8 €8 & E3E LRI INEXERINE T
the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non- LA & 25 B 91N B #x SR BT 30 17 RO 12 (0] FE B+ B
audit functions performed by the external auditors, including &t BIEABIIEEXBERTeYWAEEES
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential — {Efal/BEE K TFIF L -

material adverse effect on the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees paid/payable to & E2021F12A31BILFE - EXLIFE
the auditor, McM, in respect of the audit and non-audit services BRI, ENZEMERHERMT ¢
are as follows:

2021
20214
HK$’000
FHET

Audit services EZPRTE 880

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT B4R E 12 B 5

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the remuneration of the RIEFANEXEB.1.51 » AEBEEH E2021F
member(s) of senior management of the Group (excluding the 12A31BIFERGEE»NEREEEAR
Directors of the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (KA R EERRIN BFBOT -

by band is as follows:

Number of
Remuneration individual(s)
i A
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 4

S L L TRV 41
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board and the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
committee of the Company are acknowledges its responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness annually. Policies have been designed for
monitoring the regulations and laws compliance of the Company
and to advise on the risks involved in major decisions that need
to be reviews by the Board and solutions to the major risks.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its business, ensuring that appropriate
internal control for effective risk management are implemented.
The management is responsible for overseeing the risk
management and internal control activities of the Group. The
Corporate Governance & Risk Management Committee of the
Company provides independent review on effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and gives their recommendation to the Board. The Board is
responsible for reviewing the internal audit report and approving
policies and procedures designed by the management.

The Group’s risk management framework includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures. This
risk management framework is guided by the three-tier risk
management approach. At the first line of defence, business units
are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with each business or deal. The management, as the
second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new systems and oversees portfolio
management. It ensures that risks are within the acceptable
range and that the first line of defence is effective. As the final
line of defence, the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
Committee of the Company, ensures that the first and second
lines of defence are effective through constant inspection and
monitoring.
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Risk Management
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Pataca same as
the functional currency of the respective group entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk which
materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

In currant year, the Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate other borrowings.

The Group does not expect any significant interest rate risk which
materially affect the Group’s results of operations in 2021 and
2020.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collaterals, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables and loan receivables,
in order to minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on each and every major
customer periodically. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.
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The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry in which customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of reporting period,
the Group has concentration of credit risk as 46% (2020: 14%)
of the total trade receivables of the Company was due from
the largest customer and 77% (2020: 44%) of the total trade
receivables of the Group was due from the largest 5 customers.
Taking into accounts the creditworthiness of the customers, the
credit risk measures and the historical levels of bad debts, the
directors consider that such concentration of credit risk would
not result in significant credit default exposure to the Group.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Board, through the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2021 covering all
material financial, operational and compliance functions, is of the
view that the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are considered as effective and
adequate.

Internal Audit

The Group currently does not have an internal audit department.
The Board will review and consider to establish such department
as and when it thinks necessary.

Inside Information

The Group has adopted and implemented its own disclosure
policy aiming to provide a general guide to the directors and
senior management of the Company in handling of confidential
information and/or monitoring of information disclosure pursuant
to applicable laws and regulations in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).
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The disclosure policy provides the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information
by publication of the announcement to the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on a timely basis to enable
the public to access the latest information of the Group, unless
such information fall within the safe harbours with the SFO.
The management has notified all employees to comply with the
disclosure policy. Briefing and training on the implementation of
the policy have been provided to Directors, officers and senior
management of the Group. The Board emphasizes that only the
authorised representatives registered in the Stock Exchange are
authorised to speak on behalf of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditor of the Group in relation
to their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with Shareholders
and management.

Mr. Yu Ngai confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

Mr. Yu Ngai is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.
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SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Group provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).

Right to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company, any one or more
member(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene EGM, the Requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expense incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The requisition in writing should be sent to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, via its online holding enquiry at
www.tricoris.com, or by email to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person at its public
counter at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Contact information of the Company is set out as
follows:

Principle Office: Workshop A, 14th Floor, V Ga Building, 532 Castle
Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3643 0799

Facsimile: (852) 3622 1457

E-mail: info@wintogroup.hk

Company website: www.wintogroup.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information to its Shareholders. The focus of the
Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete thereby enabling the public as
well as the investors to make rational and informed decisions.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with its Shareholders through various means. The Company
updates its Shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports. All Shareholders’ communications are available on the
Company’s website. The website of the Company also provides
email address, postal address, fax number and telephone
number by which Shareholders’ enquiries may be put to the
Company’s Board. Appropriate members of the Board and
senior management are ready to respond to enquiries from
Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. External auditors are also
available at the annual general meeting to address Shareholders’
queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address
Shareholders’ queries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SREABE

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no
significant change in the constitutional documents of the
Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles of and guidelines on recommending or declaring
dividend to the Shareholders. The Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value.
The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders subject to the Articles and relevant laws
and regulations. The Board shall take into account the factors,
including but not limited to:

- Actual and expected financial performance;
- Cash flow situation;
- The Group’s business and operations; and

- Economic conditions and other factors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

MCM

McM (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winto
Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to
171, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

—E—FFR

18 M % A

MM E (2R AR AT
BR
(R BB MA T B RAF)

=R

BMERFINERES7TE17T1EEMEERE (12
BOERAB(TERRDREMBAR (GHEIE
SEWESTBHREK - EBEN2021412A
STHMEREMBIRKREEEZ B IEFEER
FEREAEMEANRER  GFAEREPHRNL
FERERER  UREAMBHRERME(E
RERSABERMR) -

BMRE  GREMBEHRERERES SLETE
e ((EFQHMAES ) BHNEBYIER
ESEA([HEBMBEHREENDEEMA TR
M EHEEN2021F12 831 BREGE A BIGAAR
UREEZEZALFENGEMERBREE
BeERe  YEERBESQAMEHNNEESLRT
ZERS -

EEEE (ZER) BRAR



50

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
18 M B B R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Valuation of goodwill
2. Valuation of trade and other receivables.
Valuation of goodwiill

We identified the impairment of goodwill arising from the
acquisition of to be Concepts Limited (“TBC”) as a key audit
matter, as the amount is quantitatively significant to the Group’s
financial position and the valuation requires an estimation of the
value in use of the business. The estimation of the value in use
is subject to significant management estimates, in respect of the
discount rate, terminal rate and growth rates. No impairment loss
was recognised during the year.

Details relating to the assessment of the goodwill is set out in
notes 3, 4 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RREX

BPREEEGAMAGRMANBT BEREE
QBB ZEER D ETRMNERZ - BN
S EEA T AAENEEES R AR E [ EED
RERGAVBBRRAEAENETIE—FE
i o RIEFESHMAGNEXRSHANERST
AIT<PBID) - HABLY BEEE - WREZ
STRIBTTREMBEREME - HMARE - RAPE
BHEZEEBRARIEE - A/KRMNER
TRHER -

BREESEE

REAFESRERMNEXHE - RAY
AHRGRAMBRRNEFRREENER -
ZEERNEMBAEREAM B RRLE A
BAREE MEMIEERSETHEREBL
MER - ZHMS BRI BERESTFHEND

1. BEMGE
2. EHNEMEWFAME -
EEAE

BT S M B L KB ERAR (BLE
B EENEEAEANRESEE  FAL
cHY BEENHBERERE LOEAE
% REEERRETEHOEMEE - R
% BRERMEEME - iHEAEARE
EREOEAM © FRRRERREER -

ARAREEFERFERNLE M HEME
3 4K19-°



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of goodwill (Continued)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of the
goodwill arising from the acquisition of TBC included:

- Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation model
and obtaining evidence to support the estimated cash
flow forecast underlying the value in use prepared by
management;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of the key assumptions and
inputs such as the terminal rate and growth rates used in
the model by comparing the management’s expectations
against our understanding of the current market
circumstances; and

- Critically challenging the reasonableness of the discount
rate adopted by management in discounting the cash flow
forecast with reference to available market data.

Valuation of trade and other receivables

We identified the valuation of trade and other receivables as a key
audit matter as the amounts are significant and the determination
of expected credit loss (“ECL”) requires significant management
judgements.

In respect of certain of the Group’s trade receivables, the Group
uses provision matrix to calculate the ECL. The provision rates
are based on debtor’s aging consisting of debtors with common
credit risk characteristic. The provision matrix is based on the
Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

In respect of other receivables, the Group assesses the expected
credit loss individually by estimation based on historical credit
loss experience, general economic conditions of the relevant
industry in which the debtors operate, and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of trade and other receivables (Continued)

Based on the result of the foregoing, the management has
reversed impairment losses on trade and other receivables of
HK$69,000. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
Group’s trade and other receivables, net of allowance for credit
loss, was HK$14,759,000.

Details relating to the Group’s trade and other receivables are
set out in notes 3, 4, 21 and 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the valuation of trade and
other receivables included:

- Understanding key controls on how the management
estimates the loss allowance for trade and other receivables;

- Testing the integrity of information used by management
to develop the provision matrix, including trade receivables
ageing analysis as at 31 December 2021, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items in the analysis with
the relevant sales agreements, sales invoices, settlement
records and other supporting documents;

- In respect of other receivables, assessing the
reasonableness of management’s assessment as at 31
December 2021;

- Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on trade receivables
as at 31 December 2021, including their identification of
credit impaired trade receivables, the reasonableness of
management’s grouping of the remaining trade debtors
into different categories in the provision matrix, and the
basis of estimated loss rates applied in each category in the
provision matrix (with reference to historical default rates
and forward-looking information);

- Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on other receivables as at
31 December 2021; and

- Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade and other receivables in notes 21 and
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BFRFTEE@
B2 RHEMmBWRREMGEE

ERPIER - ERERREE 5 & H i UG
A /)R B E51869,000/8 7T ° 722021412 A 31
H: B£EESKEMEKKBERAEEG
= BB EEE) 214,759,000 7T °

EEBEES NEMERZIEBNFBHNGSHT
FERRMTEFS 4~ 21 %37 °

E IRy & ot 2017 k= P2 B 48 &F =t IR

ZHERFEE S REMEEFRGENRF
(2

- THEEEFLEEZREMEWFRER
BB EEREGITE

- FERELABEEHE  HERE  £H
OB R H A ERA S A TR ERIEE - 8
HAEIEEATE A B R ST EE M i ) B
5BME - BIER2021F12A31BNE S E
WRIE BRI DA

- WMEM4MBKFIEmNS  FEEEEFER
202112 A31 BN AR

- EBEREBEETETENR2021F12A31HE
5 WA B B8 R A 2 2% [ H -
BEEREERENEZERKFIA - B2
Bt T~ B SRR BB EERE 2 TR
FHRIMEIE M - AR BB X iR
AT BEERNELERERELENE
KATEMER)

- EBEREEEAETNR2021F12A318H
o FEUR IR B B 1B R m B 2 I 1l
53

- AR AMBEmRME2IRITEEE S
Ko Bt R M RIBR ERHE VBB o



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’ s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy.

McM (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy

Practising Certificate Number PO7560
24/F., Siu On Centre,

188 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEeREREMEZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FERT FHT
Revenue sk 5 61,128 29,866
Cost of sales THE A (20,957) (14,722)
Gross profit EF 40,171 15,144
Other income HaA 7 239 1,816
Other gains or (losses) H iz sk (B18) 8 573 (623)
Operating expenses RIS (14,922) (16,401)
Impairment loss reversed/(recognised) FEHAZEEEENAT
under the expected credit loss model 2 # @/ (FER) BRI EE 18 69 (301)
Finance costs BhE KA 9 (3,279) (3,660)
Profit/(loss) before tax BB AR A (E518) 10 22,851 (3,025)
Income tax expense s #iFA X 11 (1,655) (11)
Profit/(loss) and total FRERN(BER
comprehensive income/ 2ENE(BX)#HE
(expense) for the year 21,196 (3,036)
Profit/(loss) for the year i FEREF, (BR)
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company S YNEIE 2PN 21,531 (2,847)
— Non-controlling interests — FEVERRAE (335) (189)
21,196 (3,036)
Total comprehensive income/ FEEFER2ERE (%)
(expense) for the year #EE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ =N 21,531 (2,847)
Non-controlling interests eI R 2 (335) (189)
21,196 (3,036)
Earning/(loss) per share BRER,(&E)
- Basic (HK cents) - EARGEL) 14 4.98 (0.66)
— Diluted (HK cents) - #E0Bl) 14 N/AT i N/A i F
—Eo-FAE EHEE (2R) SRA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

5 B B AR O &R

At 31 December 2021 72021412 531 H

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FHT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LN L YN 16 1,958 901
Goodwill BES 17 1,399 1,399
Intangible assets B EE 18 330 330
Equity instruments at fair value through 12 A FExH A M2 E
other comprehensive income W HRA T A 20 - =
Contract costs BRI 22 828 1,064
Other deposits Efize 21 9,655 9,426
14,170 13,120
Current assets REBEE
Trade, other receivables and other B 5 R HMEWRIE K&
deposits Hipize 21 17,306 7,598
Contract costs B HAR 22 6,526 5,814
Contract assets ABREE 26 276 =
Finance lease receivables RERERIGIE 23 - 470
Amount due from a shareholder &M — 2 B R IR 30 539 529
Amount due from a non-controlling FEW — B A A
shareholder of a subsidiary FEIERR AR SR FRIE 30 13 13
Bank balances and cash IRTTEHR IR S 24 10,949 3,212
35,609 17,636
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E A A IR 25 12,355 8,556
Contract liabilities EH8E 26 1,651 2,984
Other borrowing E g 27 - 7,000
Loan from a substantial shareholder FEREER 28 20,148 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 50 290
Tax payables FERTRIR 1,655 =
35,859 18,830
Net current liabilities REAEFEE (250) (1,194)
Total assets less current liabilites #REERRHES 13,920 11,926
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R R

At 31 December 2021 72021412 431 H

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FExT FHT
Non-current liabilities RBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 - 50
Loan from a substantial shareholder FEREER 28 - 19,152
- 19,202
Net assets/(liabilities) FEE (AR 13,920 (7,276)
Capital and reserves EXRRHE
Share capital [N 31 8,640 8,640
Reserves ] 5,369 (16,162)
Total capital deficiency AAREBEAEEESR
attributable to owners of &5 4 48 KR
the Company 14,009 (7,522)
Non-controlling interests FEEE AR 1 7 (89) 246
Total equity/(capital deficiency) i (BRELK S 13,920 (7,276)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 171 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
31 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hung Yuen Kin

RERfE
Director

EBEFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

—E—FFR

FESTAZEFIT1ENGEAET B HRRN2022F3
AR EETeH ERBETETHIATES
REERE

Lui Man Wah
BN E

Director

EE
BEF P E AR A M S IR VAR ER ) -

EEEE (ZER) BRAR




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATEEARE
Fair value
through
other
comprehensive Non-
Share Share Statutory income Capital ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests equity
BAVE
AL FER
e RaE HEBE  2EUERE -1l Bith it 3 Biag
HKS 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Thn T TEn &7 Thn Tar TEn Tin Thn
(note a) (note b) (notec)
(fita) (Fztb) (Fitc)

At1 January 2020, as restated H0NE1R1  BE3) 8,640 U331 49 (1429 1378 (113863) (10,889) 43 (10459

Total comprehensive expense forthe year EREERRER = = = = = &7 847 (189) (306)

Reclasficafion adjustment upon equiy instument REATE AL 2ENES

atfar value through other comprehensive income RATANERERHIBE
witen off rote 20) (fk20) - - - 148 = (1429 . = =

Deemed capita contrbution (note 29) Bt () - - - - 6,213 = 6213 = 6,213

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 02012831 BR0AF1A1R 8,640 94,331 4 - 7591 (118,139 (752 246 7.216)

Totel comprehensive ncome/expenses) for heyear  EMRERE/ (B8 - - - - - 21,53 21,53 (335) 21,19

At 31 December 2021 R0AE12831 8 8,640 94331 4 - 7591 96,602 14,009 89) 13920

Notes: BifsE -

(@)  Inaccordance with the article 377 of the Macau Commercial Code, the  (a)  RIFBFIRIAEEI771F + AR A ERPIEMAK
Company’s subsidiary incorporated in Macau are required to transfer YHHMB AR AKFEMN KL 25%EREIETE
a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits to a statutory reserve i EEREBESNEAREENS0% - FERAETF
until that reserve equals 50% of the nominal value of their capital. The BERE  EERETSUESREREMFTRS
statutory reserve may not be distributed in the form of cash dividends K ©
or otherwise, during the life of the company.

(o)  Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve represents (b)) EAFEFAEMEEKFHERENEME2EK
cumulative gains and losses on fair value of financial assets at fair HEREZEATEFAEMZENENESREER
value through other comprehensive income recognised in other FE R Kk EiE -
comprehensive income.

(c)  Capital reserve represents the deemed capital contribution from  (c) BAFKEETIEREERELNBIETBRET

a substantial shareholder (note 28) arising from the loan from a
substantial shareholder. It is the difference between the imputed
interest calculated by the market interest rate at the loan inception date
and the nominal interest rate charged by the substantial shareholder.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KeEEE
Profit/(loss) before tax AR, (E18) 22,851 (3,025)
Adjustments for: AR
Interest income FE WA (239) (195)
Interest expense A2 ﬁ 3,279 3,660
Depreciation of property, M - BN ERETE
plant and equipment 618 579
Amortisation of contract costs BRI 5 236 182
(Gain)/loss on debt modifications Tiﬁ%mﬁ (Uzs) B8 (573) 978
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use iR TER I AR ER W
assets - (359)
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised EHEEEBREA TE®E),
under expected credit loss model ERA R EE R (69) 301
Operating cash flows before movementsin & EE L EHAINLLE L RE
working capital 26,103 2,125
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B REMEBWHRIEREERS
receivables and rental deposits (3 ),k (9,159) 1,515
Increase in contract costs B KR A IE N (712) (5,042)
Increase in trade and other payables “é’ 5 N H At FE AT SRIFIE BN 3,799 1,356
Increase in contract assets BHBEEREN (276) =
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BHaE0RL), Em (1,333) 1,997
Cash generated from operations REXBMFEE 18,422 1,951
Profits tax paid =RNEUEEY - (47)
Net cash generated from in RETHRBRELFH
operating activities 18,422 1,904

—E—FFR

EEEE (ZER) BRAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERITRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Deposit paid to secure the subcontracting REGHSBHEMNES
agreement - (10,500)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE 3 - 234 LR & (1,675) (30)
Advance to a shareholder BTN (10) (529)
Advance to a non-controlling shareholder of A1 — 1B B A &) B9 FE4E AL AL B
a subsidiary IR - (13)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHFAREFHE (1,685) (11,072)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A& EE
Interest paid ERFE (700) (1,539)
Repayment of other borrowings EEEMERK (7,000) (2,934)
Proceeds from substantial shareholder loan ~ F EAX B E X AAS N IE - 13,500
Repayment of substantial shareholder loan ~ EiE T BB E X (1,000) =
Repayment of lease liability EEHEAR (300) (250)
Net cash (used in)/from financing BMETE(FTH), 8RS FE
activities (9,000) 8,777
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRESEEYWEM (RD)
cash equivalents HE 7,737 (391)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January A1B1ANBEERALEEY 3,212 3,603
Cash and cash equivalents at M2A31ENBEERESEEY
31 December 10,949 3,212
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its issued shares are listed on GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office, and
head office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report. Its ultimate and immediate parent is Source
Creation International Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liabilities and owned
by Mr. Lui Man Wah (“Mr. Lui”). Mr. Lui is a non-executive
director and the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as the “Group”) are
provision of exhibition and trade show and related services,
publication and advertising and outdoor advertising.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (HK$’000), which is same as the
functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2021 as mentioned
below. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption of these new
and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the
Group’s financial statements and amounts reported for the
current year and prior years.

—FFH EHEE (EZER) ARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021412 A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phrase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent

Concessions

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not
result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policy, presentation of the Group’s financial statements and

amounts reported for the current year and prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective which may be relevant to the Company:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendment to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Business Combination
— Reference to the
Conceptual Framework?

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-2020
cycle?

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or
Non-current’

Making Materiality
Judgements —
Disclosure of
Accounting Policies'

TEC S5 EBEE (ZER) BRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet
effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors —
Definition of Accounting
Estimates'
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred
Tax Related to Assets
and Liabilities Arising
from a Single
Transaction'

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 20213

Amendment to HKFRS 16

1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

The directors anticipate that the application of these new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FERFIERMBREER
((EBUBHEER REBEFE
AITEBEFER) AR H BT (80

EARERMWHTEEMBRELEARE
1&57 (%)

BEGIERFESR 2 FETBEX - 5T

4T BT R
5% - G
R

FREGEAFEI12R 2 /MR -E—X

fE&] PEEZEE
KRB EREE
FEFE IR

FESHERFE169 2 B20215F6

(£ A30H# 2
COVID-1948
At B =

1. R2028% 1A 1A% kR R A
2 -

2. M2022F1A1Hs 2 BHANFESHMA
R o

3. R2021F4A1H 2 RFANFEHRE
R e

EXRHERZEN BN BRE L]
KAERT AR AT FREAR SR A & B4R & B 7%
BRERERTE °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liqguidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUSs") (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

The Group incurs costs to fulfill a contract in its exhibition
and trade show contracts. The Group first assesses
whether these costs qualify for recognition as an asset in
terms of other relevant Standards, failing which it recognises
an asset for these costs only if they meet all of the following
criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises
revenue from the following major sources. The Group’s
revenue recognition policies on each of these revenue
sources are as follows:

(i)  Publications and advertising income

The Group generates advertising income from the
publications that are point and online media platform.
The customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits when the advertisements are released
on the designated publications and online media
platform. Revenue from publications and advertising
recognised over time using the output method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services transferred
to the customer to date relative to the remaining
services promised under the contract.

The Group earns revenue from selling publications.
Revenue from sales of publications is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the
magazines.

The Group generates advertising design and related
production services to its customers. Revenue from
provision of advertising design and related production
service is recognised over a period of time using the
output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value to the
customer of the services transferred to date relative to
the remaining services promised under contract (i.e.
when the designated publications transferred to the
customers.)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EREFBEG@E
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNNWE(E)
(Continued)

(i) Outdoor advertising income (i) FIIEHFKA
The Group provides outdoor advertising spaces to AEBERMBEFRERBEPINEENE -
customers. The customers simultaneously receive EFREBENETEABREINESA
and consume the benefits when the advertisement is ERTESKONE - PINEEH
displayed on the outdoor advertising spaces. Revenue Wz A EE A BE R ISR o

from outdoor advertising is recognised over time using
the output method.

The Group provides advertisement sourcing agency AEERAETFPIEHESRENRR
services to its customers. Revenue from provision of AR5 o 1R E SR E R IR & UK
advertisement sourcing agency service is recognised RERAERER —BREHAER
over a period of time under a straight-line method WHREHHAMEITHESE - AEEE
and amortised over the period of the contract. The RREANFEEEREMNERAK
Group recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or RereEERKE -

commission on a net basis as an agent.

(i) Exhibitions and trade show and related service (i) RERESREEUREEEREKRA
income
Revenue from provision of exhibitions and trade show REREREIRERBOWRE
services is recognised over time using the output REL ZMESEER - BIREET
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis BESEERTEPNRBEEBM
of direct measurements of the value of the services HEATAGRENS TRBER
transferred to the customer to date relative to the B EERR IS -

remaining services promised under the contract.

TR HREE (ER) GRAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged
to the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that
is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs
are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exception to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease

inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the lease payments
and related payments (including the initial direct costs),
and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge return over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease
is classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of “exchange reserve” (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Employee benefits
Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses when there is
a contractual obligation and the amount can be estimated
reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employees’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5% of relevant income
vests immediately upon the completion of service in the
relevant service period, while the remaining portion vests in
accordance with the MPF Scheme’s vesting scales. Where
employees leave the MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting
of the employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Social security fund

Full-time employees of the Group’s Macau subsidiaries are
covered by a government-mandated defined contribution
plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement benefit
would be determined and paid by the Macau government.
Contributions are generally made by both employees and
employers by paying a fixed amount on a monthly basis
to the Social Security Fund Contribution managed by the
Macau government.

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled
share-based payment reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31 B I FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when investment
properties are depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Advertising billboard 7 years
Leasehold improvements 33.33%
Office equipment 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicle 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued used of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31 B I FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives and contract cost to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31 B I FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other
assets related to the relevant contracts in accordance with
applicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for
assets capitalised as contract costs is recognised to the
extent the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for related goods or services less the costs which
relate directly to providing those goods or services that have
not been recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as
contract costs are then included in the carrying amount of
the CGU to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating
impairment of that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUSs) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
at FVTPL are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as other income.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRSY/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEBIBEGE
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) EWMITEGE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE B

EREENTERAKLSE B

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

()  Amortised cost and interest income ()  EESHACAR KA BHA

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as FVTOCI

Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the
FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(iiy  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the other gain and losses line item.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss (“ECL”) on financial assets and contract assets which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, contract assets
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at the
end of each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the end of the
reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, contract assets and lease receivables without
significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

()  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAREFEE@®

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SR T A (@

Financial assets (Continued) THEEE

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets THEEREHEERREE)

(Continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) i) EERBEZEIMNGE)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of AEETHERARNEREERR
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a BRREEINMOFEE ZKE - L&
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as FRERE(WMEE) UNBRZER
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of BN & a H R R E B AR
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the HREE LN -

amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default (iy BHOWERE

For internal credit risk management, the Group RAFCEERREEMS  A5H
considers an event of default occurs when information REEARERILKBIINTRENE
developed internally or obtained from external sources BBEREBATKAREINE2ER
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, HTEEABEAEE) AEARER
including the Group, in full (without taking into account RNEEFRFANERERm)E - Al
any collaterals held by the Group). SEXENENH -

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that WM AER X  NEERES
default has occurred when (i) a trade receivable ()& 2 WK IE B HI B @ o0K -
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group ABAE %Y. RIEXNEEHEES
has reasonable and supportable information to BRASEERBET —HEFENE
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is AFEREHEDNE R

more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31 B I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEARSTHEHE®@E
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SR T A (@
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE

EHMEEREVEERNBEE)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy (v) HSHECR

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the past-due status basis.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
loan receivables where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognised its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognised the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
other borrowing, amount due from a shareholder, amount
due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, loan
from a substantial shareholder and bank overdrafts are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises the financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired.

When the contractual terms of financial liability are modified
such that the revised terms would result in a substantial
modification from the original terms after considering
qualitative factors (e.g. modifications of convertible
instruments such as extending the tenure, change in
exercise price of the underlying options). When the
contractual terms of financial liability are modified such that
the revised terms would result in a substantial modification
from the original terms, after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors, such
modification is accounted for as derecognition of the original
financial liability and the recognition of new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of financial
liability derecognised and the fair value of consideration paid
or payable, including any liabilities assumed and derivative
components recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, at the point of modification,
the carrying amount of the relevant financial liabilities is
revised for directly attributable transaction costs and any
consideration paid to or received from the counterparty.
The effective interest rate is then adjusted to amortise
the difference between the revised carrying amount and
the expected cash flows over the life of the modified
instrument.”
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows presentation,
cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which
is repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

() A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(8) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(2) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(8) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

(8) the entity, or any member of a group of which it

is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related party transactions (Continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between the Group and a related
party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit, a suitable discount rate, terminal rate and
growth rates in order to calculate the present value. No
impairment loss on goodwill was recognised during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill (Continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the reporting
period was approximately HK$1,399,000 after an
impairment loss of HK$Nil was recognised during the year.

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are
based on debtor’'s aging as groupings of various debtors
with common credit risk characteristic. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable, and that is available without undue cost
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables that are credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

In respect of other receivables, the Group assesses the
expected credit losses individually by estimation based
on historical credit loss experience, general economic
conditions of the relevant industry in which the debtors
operate, an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The information about the Group’s trade and other
receivables and credit risk and impairment assessment
are disclosed in notes 21 and 37 respectively. As at 31
December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s trade
and other receivables and contract assets, net of allowance
for credit loss, was HK$14,759,000 and HK$276,000 (2020:
HK$5,327,000 and Nil) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

4,

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group as a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group as an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good

or services before that good or services is transferred to a
customer.

REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

B ARH R @RS (3

FE A& 5t BUR B E A

ZEAAERAEA

ER—H2HERARFREERE IR -

AEEMEE EAGNEE EA B FIRHE
ERmaRS (A RESREA) L H
H—HATFRMEE MRS (B AR E

BRBANOBHRT -

HARBEES T ERmIREEBEREEP
ZAIEFIZEmE R - AKRE AR

A °
Wz
REFEFEHNNWEMAD

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET

Provision of exhibition and trade show IRHERE K& 5 & E &8RS
and related services 2,235 4,674
Publications and advertising income T4 K B WA 29,953 21,478
Outdoor advertising income FIONESE WA 28,940 3,714
61,128 29,866

Timing of revenue recognition Wiy 5 7 22 By

A point in time S 1,724 1,647
Overtime B B P 59,404 28,219
61,128 29,866
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

REVENUE (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Transaction allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contract with customer

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to all its sale contracts such that the
Group does not disclose information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines in a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), being
the executive directors of the Company for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No
operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

1 Exhibition and trade show business and related
services

2 Publications and advertising business, including print
and online media advertising, sales of publications,
advertising and related production services and
outdoor advertising

Wz ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is set out below.

Segment revenues and results

For the year ended 31 December 2021

6. K& E @

HE2021F K2020F12A31H IEFE -
REFAEEFREERARERIEERSD

o K 0 BB R IR FHE 2 AN R B A it

BEFT -

Pl L6 S E S

HZE2021F12831A L FE

ENEE

Exhibition
and trade Publications
show business and
and related advertising
services business Total
RERES
BEXEK HH R
STELL TS BEEFEK a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FTET TET FTET
Revenue Wz
Segment revenues D E R 2,235 58,893 61,128
Inter-segment sales DEPEIHE - - -
Revenue from external customers RBINPE P e 2,235 58,893 61,128
Segment profit ban= Yl 1,491 38,680 40,171
Other income HA 239
Other gains or (losses) Hib ez (B518) 573
Operating expenses RERY (14,922)
Impairment loss reversed under HEHEEBBEXET
expected credit loss model EREMREEE 69
Finance costs BB AR (3,279)
Profit before tax B 250 A1 A1) 22,851
Income tax expense PTSHIA X (1,655)
Profit for the year F A4 F 21,196
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. K&EHIH@

P L6 ISE S AC Y

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12A31BILEE

Exhibition
and trade Publications
show business and
and related advertising
services business Total
RERES
BEXG 14 &2
K B8 AR 7% S A&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT TAT
Revenue Wz
Segment revenues o ahdEs 4,674 26,192 30,866
Inter-segment sales DEPEIHE = (1,000) (1,000)
Revenue from external customers REINDEF B 4,674 25,192 29,866
Segment profit okl 2,360 12,784 15,144
Other income HAg A 1,816
Other gains or (losses) Hipdrzisk (B518) (623)
Operating expenses RERY (15,401)
Impairment loss recognised under BEHEEBBEXET
expected credit loss model BERRNRERE (301)
Finance costs BEKAR (3,660)
Loss before tax PR AT (3,025)
Income tax expense FTSHiF X (11)
Loss for the year FAEE (3,036)

LD AR G R T BUR B4R B R M ¥R I R
AT AR B &5 BRAR - 7 &P M5
& 53 BOBRER B0 ) ) M 3 8 0 B LA A
REF - HpliasskEeE - BEZRE
i FE M F IR O R HREBE AL
BEARBERA - WHIZBTAKEE
BEFBERDEMKBANENTE -

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment
profit represents the profit earned from each segment
without allocation of other income, operating expenses,
other gains or losses, impairment loss reversed/recognised
on trade and other receivables and contract assets and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. REDIBE)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAMR

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible assets NDEEERREMBBEMEREENURR
and current assets with the exception of equity instruments FEE TEEZRAFERFAEMEEK
at FVTOCI, unallocated bank balances and cash and other HHRATER RORBRITEBRERESIN
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include provisions and DEMPHEE - DHAEBREREADE

trade and other payables attributable to the activities of the
individual segments, contract liabilities and lease liabilities.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

HRE  ANBREBENEERE -

BERABODMN -

MEIDNAREE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Segment assets PWEE
Exhibition and trade show business REREFREXT
and related services MR RS 3,919 4,398
Publications and advertising business T4 &2 B & 27 43,903 24,557
Total segment assets DEHEEETE 47,822 28,955
Bank balances and cash IRTTAESHR AR S 401 239
Unallocated assets AOBLEE 1,556 1,562
Consolidated assets HReEBE 49,779 30,756
Segment liabilities el h=Ri
Exhibition and trade show business RELREIREHXK
and related services N AB R R% 1,508 1,421
Publications and advertising business ~ F|#) & & 5 %75 11,942 6,635
Total segment liabilities DEBEERE 13,450 8,056
Unallocated liabilities RoBLBE 22,409 29,976
Consolidated liabilities e AE 35,859 38,032
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. K&EHIH@
Geographical information 3 & R
The Group’s operations are located in Guangdong-Hong REEEBLUREERNER -

Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area.

Information about the Group’s revenue for operations is EBAAEERBIINSEPEBHKEER
from external customers presented based on location of THiRIBE AR B 9 sk iR AR TS A Hb
delivery destination of the goods and place of services LI

rendered.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIIFEF R kRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20214F 20204 20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FHET
Guangdong — Hong Kong 78 K /&=
— Macau Greater Bay
Area 61,128 29,866 14,170 13,120
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of total B FEEE A S B HE A B B10%H
sales of the corresponding years of the Group is as follows: RS
2021 2020
20214 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Customer A (Note b)! EPAM D) 11,383 N/AZ i 3
Customer B (Note b)' ZFB(Mi5Eb)" 10,000 N/AT3E B
Customer C (Note b)? K P C(FfizEb)? N/ATiE A 5,705
Customer D (Note a)? X FD(MzEa)? N/ATiE A 3,489
Notes: M5 -
i The customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue i EF  BEPUEEAEEAKZEI0% A
of the Group for the last year. e
2 The customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue 2 RAFE  BERFIELTEEBKZE10%
of the Group for the current year. PAE -
(@  Revenue from the above customers is arising from exhibition and (8 XREELAZFMUZELEREREIRE
trade show business and related services. BERRAEERE -
()  Revenue from the above customers is arising from publications () RELAREF&MWKZEIIRE T RESZE
and advertising business. % o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

7.

8.

OTHER INCOME 7. HMWA
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest income on finance lease B & & EUBGRIR R F B A

receivables (note 23) (Ft7E23) 10 23
Interest income on non-current deposits FE7 &z & B FI B WA (i zE21)

(note 21) 229 172
Government grants (Note) BT Bh (B 3E) - 1,531
Sundry income MIEWA - 90

239 1,816

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
government grants of approximately HK$902,000 related to
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
government and COVID-19 related subsidies provided by the
Government of Macau. The remaining recognised government
grants of approximately HK$629,000 related to an incentive
subsidy for technology modernisation by the Government

Mzt : HZE2020F12A31RLLFE - AEERE
RELE BT IR AR B AT 8 &R
R F4R B COVID-1948 8 4 L FB BE &0 Bk
JiF 4 B #9902,00078 7T © 8 T C MR EUT
BN %9629,00078 7T )% K B P4 [ BT 3
BB EME AR E LA EEHE - I
T #8 BY PR 7K 55 [ 7 2 A8 B 35 L A 2E B 1

Information Bureaus of the Macau SAR. Government grants R o
were recognised at the time the Group fulfilled the relevant
granting criteria.
H Az = = 4=
OTHER GAINS OR (LOSSES) 8. HftzWam (&R)
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THETT
Gain/(loss) on debt modification EEEE IS (E8)
(notes 27 and 28) (ff5X27 }%.28) 573 978)
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use R 1B EEE S8 42 R A
assets upon classification of finance REE MY (FaE23)
lease (note 23) - 355
573 (623)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

FINANCE COSTS 9. BIERAK
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on other borrowing H & 5RF A 700 1,027
Interest on loan from a substantial FERRERFE
shareholder 2,569 2,615
Interest on lease liabilities (note 29) HEAEN L (FFFE29) 10 18
3,279 3,660
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 10. BRBIAIEF(E58)

Profit/(loss) before tax has been arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

BRBIADER, S (BR) ThiE kR Gt AT
PIRIRREH ¢

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FHET
Auditors’ remuneration (note A) ZE M £ (FIFEA) 880 1,801
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised L& 5 K H b & Ug 78
on trade and other receivables, net (B E), FERHBIEEEFHE (69) 301
Depreciation of property, M - BB E (HEEB)
plant and equipment (note B) 618 579
Rental expenses in respect of REPHENHEERS
short-term leases 957 971
Staff costs 8 TR
Director’'s emoluments (note 12) B2 (ME12) 1,034 1,603
Other staff costs HMETRHA
- salaries, allowances and benefitsin =~ — #& ~ EE R EYEF
kind 6,101 7,609
- contributions to retirement benefits ~ — RIREFIET &I 3%
scheme 164 265
6,265 7,874
Note A:  Auditor's remuneration for the year ended 31 December MEEA:  #E ZE2020%12 A31H I FE X EAD
2020 included approximately HK$880,000 and HK$920,500 e BEARENTRRE(FE) G
paid to McM (HK) CPA Limited and predecessor auditor MEBERA G RATMEZEEN L
respectively. 880,000/ 7T % 920,500 77T °
Note B: Depreciation for the year ended 31 December 2021 included MiFEB: #HZE2021F12A31ALFERNITER
approximately HK$179,000 (2020: HKS$NIl) in cost of sales. R ER A %179,0007%8 7T (20204 :
=TT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31 B I FE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11. FIBHRAX

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEH

- Current tax - RTHATE 1R - -

Macau Complementary Tax BFIFT SR
- Current tax - BNHARK 18 1,655 -
- Underprovision in prior years -BAEFEBRETR - 11
1,655 11

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5%. There is no impact to the Group as the Group
does not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the Group has
sufficient tax losses brought forward to set-off against both
years’ assessable profits.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11. FIB8HIFAX (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to FAFMGENRAXESGEERRNEMEE
the profit/(loss) before taxation per consolidated statement WS RFTHIBR T AR R, (E518) 2 HER
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: T

2021 2020

202145 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

Profit/(loss) before taxation BR& RS A (B518) 22,851 (3,025)

Tax credit at the Hong Kong Profits REBNEHE16.5%

Tax rate at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) (20204F : 16.5%) 5t EHY
MIAE % 3,770 (499)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible Lt E &8 2 Al H1E B 2 A9

for tax purpose MR 46 711
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax FAtEFHi 1B 2 HERRAR

purpose MG 2 (10) (129)
Tax effect of temporary difference not ~ REERERE =T ET £

recognised 64 82
Effect of different tax rates of REAM FLERE R S ERH B A A

subsidiaries operating in other AR X8

jurisdiction (648) (119
Utilisation of tax losses previously A SRR R A E R

not recognised (1,722) -
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not ~ KERETRIBBEOHRIETE

recognised 225 266
Tax reduction T IR 2 (70) (316)
Underprovision in prior years BAEFERETR - 11
Income tax expense FRiS iR 2 1,655 11
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated RB|BERR - AEEHEB G ABATIE
unused tax losses of HK$3,777,661 (2020: HK$12,853,360) 183,777,661 7T (20204F : 12,853,360
available for offset against future profits. No deferred BIL) AR EF o AR
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax loss Ao A EATER - EL I LT IEE R
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The WRIEERIAEE - RERHIBR BT E
unrecognised tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. PREAAEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021412 A31H L FE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEME
The emoluments of directors and the chief executive for the HZE2021F %2020F12A318 EFER
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: EERTETHAEMESAT :

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021512831ALEE
Contributions  Equity-settled
Salaries to retirement share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits Bonus scheme expense Total
FeR RIKER RELE
e HiEw ®e SRR ROMREX CH
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$'000
TER TER THET THET TET TET
Executive directors HTES
Hung Yuen Kin EiRfd - 614 - - - 614
Non-executive director FHTES
Lui Man Wah BE 150 - - - - 150
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Wong Chi Ling ETR 20 - - - - 2
Wong Ling Yan Phillip BHER 90 - - - - 20
Lee Man Yeung FF 20 - - - - 2
Total emoluments Be 420 614 - - - 1,034
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 12. EEMES @)
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZ2020F12A31ALFE
Contributions Equity-settled
Salaries to retirement share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits Bonus scheme expense Total
ek RGBT s
e  EuEd RE AEMES ROAFEX B3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAET TET TET TAT
Executive directors YTEE
Hung Yuen Kin iRl - 604 - - - 604
Li Ka Yee Daphne' TRE - 542 - - = 542
Non-executive director FEHTES
Lui Man Wah B E 163 = = = = 163
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Wong Chi Ling BETR 98 - - - - %
Wong Ling Yan Phillip BEER 98 - - - - 98
Lee Man Yeung FF %8 = = = = %
Total emoluments aie 457 1,146 - - - 1,603
1 Appointed as an executive director on 16 October 2019 and L R2019F10A16HEZEAMITESTI RN
resigned on 4 December 2020. 2020512 B4 A FHE ©
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

There were no share options granted during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no amount
(2020: Nil) was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out
in note 13 as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments for the both years.

Except for a loan from Lui Man Wah, as detailed in note 28
to these consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

12. EEME @)

EXHRBTES S REERARR
MAEBEZ EBERRERBER - £X
FIRIERITESE RBUIFRTEE M S
HRERH O ANBEZREEH -

HE2021F K2020F12A31H IEFE -
BB AR AE - BERRERT BIFFHIBE AR
B IRR M FES4 o

HZE2021F12A31BILFE » ERK
EEMESIMTISAHERLEZSZSHFA
TR ER—F S S B 7R IE (20204
E)ERBRSI MAREB S IMARER %
RSB EE -  RMETE - $iEE
ERESRBERETAHESOLEE -

Bz Fma M mR M E28mMaFoIRE
B XENERIN - AR R I ERT (T8
AEEXBERAARREETREBEBEA
TERIMEREREAES MmN FRKF
NEFMREFENEARS  ZHERA
# e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13. AEESHES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the FRNEAEEREERHEETBRE—RE
year included one (2020: two) directors, details of whose £(2020F : MBES) ' EHFMFBER
remuneration are set out in note 12 to the consolidated RAMBREMFI1I2FHEE - FREHT
financial statements. Details of the remuneration for the year M4 (2020 : =R) &= EE BRI ER
of the remaining four (2020: three) highest paid employees RAEEBMIFFTETHRAB)NTMFS
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the W

Company are as follows:

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHEIT
Salaries and other benefits e REMET] 1,983 1,792
Discretionary bonuses FIBIEAT - 53
Contributions to retirement benefits R FIET BB K
scheme 54 36
2,037 1,881
The number of highest paid employee who are not directors MeENFLATHEMTIFESN R T E
whose remuneration fell within the following bands: BAS:
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 4 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

14. EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14. BREBR,(Ei8)
The calculation of basic and diluted earning/(loss) per share KARHEANBESRERARESERT,
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the (E518) TWIRIE A N8BT E -

following data:

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHATT
Earning/(loss) for the year attributable to 22 Rl A A B FE R,
owners of the Company (E518) 21,531 (2,847)
2021 2020
20214 20204
Number of ordinary shares TEREB
Weighted average number of ordinary At ESIREAR L EERF],
shares for the purposes of basic and (E518) By T 3 AR N AE 39 2
diluted earning/(loss) per share 432,000,000 432,000,000
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, dilutive B E2021F K2020F 1231 B IEFE -
earning/(loss) per share has not been presented as there is BRI BTN BB -
no potential dilutive shares outstanding. EENNGREERT,(BE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. RE

EETEZRMNEZ2021F12A318 1k
FE AT R E (20204 © ) o

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - SEWMERE
Furniture
Advertising Leasehold Office Motor and
billboard  improvements equipment vehicles fixtures Total
RER HERE  BAZRE RE  BERREE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THBT T THL Tix THEL THBT
Cost %
At 1 January 2020 202061 418 - 314 782 480 1,227 2,803
Additions during the year FRRE - - 30 - = 30
At31 December 2020and 820205124318 ]k

1 January 2021 2021F1A18 - 314 812 480 1,227 2,833
Additions during the year FRRE 1,675 - - - - 1,675
At 31 December 2021 1#2021%12A31A 1,675 314 812 480 1,227 4,508
Accumulated depreciation R TERFHE

and impairment
At 1 January 2020 72020%1 A1A - 112 554 236 451 1,353
Charge for the year FRXH = 64 142 160 213 579
At 31 December2020and 20205124318 &

1 January 2021 2021%1A1H - 176 696 396 664 1,932
Charge for the year ERxH] 179 64 93 84 198 618
At 31 December 2021 #2021%12831R 179 240 789 480 862 2,550
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2021 1#2021512A31H 1,496 74 2 - 365 1,958
At 31 December 2020 12020612 431R - 138 116 84 563 901

T -FFW BEREE (EZER) BRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

16.

17.

18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y12 - |WRRE @
(Continued)
The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated i B3 K B TR B 3R T 51 R AR AR

on its cost less their residual value on a straight-line basis at ERE - WERETERE -

the following rates per annum:

Advertising billboard 7 years & & b2 7
Leasehold improvement 33.33% HMERE 33.33%
Furniture and fixtures 20% ERREE 20%
Office equipment 20% WRERE 20%
Motor vehicle 20% E 20%
No impairment was made for the years ended 31 December BRI EREDRR - #8F20214F 2020
2021 and 2020, as there were no impairment indicators. F12A31BILFEWERRE -
GOODWILL 17. BE
HK$’000
FHEIT
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, A2020F1 818 - 2020£12831H
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 2021F1H1H K%2021512831H 1,399
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill EAREREARNFENGEE W FRE
are disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial BIEE1919 EE -
statements.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B &EE
Club
membership
AT esE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, A2020F1 818 - 2020£12831H
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 2021%1H1HK2021%E12831H 330
The club membership has indefinite useful life and is carried Bt efEAFRER - LA ER
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The ZETREEEYR - LML A TES
fair value of club membership is higher than the carrying REREE °
amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill as set out
in note 17 to these consolidated financial statements, the
balance of goodwill has been allocated to CGU of exhibition
and trade show business and related services.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the directors of
the Company determine that there is no impairment loss on
goodwill (2020: nil).

The recoverable amount of the exhibition and trade show
CGU as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. The
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and pre-tax discount rate of 18.2% (2020: 17.2%).
Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 2.5% (2020: 2.5%) growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecast and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such
estimation is based on management’s expectations for the
market development.

The management believes that any reasonable possible
change in any of the these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to CGU to exceed aggregate
recoverable amount of CGU.

19. EERERH

A BREN SR ERNZEFREMBHRER
ME17)ME  AEEHRESIRERER
BOREXBLABRENACELSE

fif o

HZE2021F12A31BILEEFE - ARFE
EEETYERNEREEIE(2020F
) o
RERESRERESELEEMMN2021F
% 2020F 12 A31 B A W El € FEE B &
FREBNEET - ZTEFANRER
SRR TIAE R B ERESFH R
BITIR E18.2% M B BN TE & & E i (2020
F:17.2%) - BESFEHNIRE REFEH
& 7E 2.5% 38 & 8| (20204 : 2.5%) °
g R R TEMNEEITEERETERN - BT
HBREEITENEHREREX - FHE
B EMEMEZRRERRBEEHER
%ﬂ%H’Ufﬂ/i\ﬁ)\//mﬁdzﬁﬁﬁﬁé =]
BEET HEREEEHMSERNIEE
Hj o

EEERS  HRFBRRNEMSIER]
REPN ISR EABUNREA
BERARSELEMNAKDEE -

LS5 ZEHEE (EZER) ARAFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

20. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

. BRAVEFARMBEERSEHRA

TH
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAETT

Unlisted securities JEETRES

The above unlisted securities represent the Group’s equity
interest in SNC Limited (“SNC”), a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. The Group hold 9.09% equity interest
in SNC. SNC is engaged in digital asset management,
exchange, advisory and related business in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, SNC entered
into voluntary liquidation and was dissolved with no
residual value on 17 September 2020. Accordingly, the
Group’s equity interest in SNC was written off and the fair
value through other comprehensive income reserve was
reclassified to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. ESREMEBBWRFREREMIZS
OTHER DEPOSITS

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$’000
F&T FET
Trade receivables Z W FIA 14,753 5,620
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (41) (301)
14,712 5,319
Deposits Ee 11,618 11,389
Rental deposits Heke 141 144
Prepayment BT RIR 443 164
Other receivables H fth pE IR 47 8
26,961 17,024
Less: deposits paid for securing B BEHTRRIERBEEIERT
advertising space shown under BEMEMNENIZS
non-current assets (note) (B=E) (9,655) (9,426)
Shown under current assets SITRRBEEET 17,306 7,598
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered sk : MEIZE2020F 128318 ILFE - A&EH
into a subcontracting agreement with an independent third party, HBYE=FRI U BHE BIEE
whereby certain advertising spaces in the Hong Kong Boundary BOENETESMNESBRTALE -
Crossing Facilities are subcontracted to the Group. Further Bl BHENE—TFBEHN2020F
details in relation to the subcontracting agreement are set out FHROBEENRESINT - AREEX
in the Management and Discussion Analysis to the 2020 annual 110,500,000/ TR & & A BR 1520204 1
report. The Group was required to pay a security deposit of A1BZE2025F5A31BMESUE - 3F
HK$10,500,000 to secure the advertising spaces from 1 January AR e M EBERF R RETF2.4% °

2020 to 31 May 2025. The effective interest rate of the non-
current deposits is 2.4% per annum.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER DEPOSITS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

The Group classifies the deposit as a financial asset at amortised
cost and assessed the fair value of the deposit as at settlement
date discounted by the prevailing market interest rate. The
difference between the fair value of the deposit as at settlement
date and the transaction price of HK$10,500,000 is recorded as
a contract cost, as disclosed in note 22 to these consolidated
financial statements. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group recorded interest income on the non-current deposit,
amortised under the effective interest rate, of approximately
HK$229,000 (2020: HK$172,000).

The Group provided customers with credit period ranging
from 0 to 90 days from the date on which invoice was
issued. The credit terms of each customer of the Group
were determined by the Group’s sales team and were
subject to review and approval of the Group’s management
based on the customers’ payment history, transaction
volume and length of business relationship with the Group.

All outstanding trade receivables balances were being
reviewed by the Group’s sales department on a regular
basis to ensure that any overdue receivable was promptly
monitored and appropriate collection actions were taken.
The Group’s sales department would follow up on the
collections and the Group’s accounting department would
monitor the progress of collection. For those material long
outstanding balances, legal actions would be taken for debt
collection. During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, no legal actions were taken by the Group for debt
collection.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21, EZRHMERREREMGRSE
OTHER DEPOSITS (Continued) (#&)
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables (before ZE B EYME S EWKIE(RE
allowance for credit losses) at the end of the reporting EBBERER) NS BRMERER ST
period presented based on the overdue days: ™
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current BN EA 3,220 3,653
1-30 days 1-30H 1,663 227
31-90 days 31-90H 3,051 1,213
Over 90 days B3890 H 6,819 527
14,753 5,620
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other B ZE2021F k202012 A31H EFER
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2021 and B 5 & E M W R IR R B RS S IE S B
2020 are set out in note 37. 537 °
22. CONTRACT COSTS 22. EHRA
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FH&T
Cost to fulfill contracts in relation to: BITEBULTEENEL.Z
%N
Exhibition and trade show business RENEIREER
and related services MARRBA RS 429 429
Publications and advertising business ~ FII#) & J& &5 %75 6,925 6,449
7,354 6,878
Less: contract costs for securing B BRI TRIERBEE
advertising space shown under BTNEEMENE NN
non-current assets (828) (1,064)
Shown under current assets HIRRBEER T 6,526 5,814

TG HREE (RR) ARAT 133




134
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

22.

23.

CONTRACT COSTS (Continued)

Contract costs capitalised for exhibition and trade show
business and related services related to the cost to fulfill
contracts of design and production of exhibition, trade show
events and advertisement resulted in customers entering
contracts for the Group’s design and production which are
still under process at the end of the reporting date. There
was no impairment on the contract cost during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, contract costs
capitalised for publications and advertising business related
to the time value of money arising from the deposit to
secure advertising space of approximately HK$828,000
(2020: HK$1,064,000), as disclosed in note 21 to these
consolidated financial statements, and costs to fulfill
contracts for advertising business arising from prepayments
for short term rental of advertising spaces of approximately
HK$6,097,000 (2020: HK$5,385,000). There was no
impairment on the contract cost during the year.

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into a lease arrangement with an independent
third party for storage space (the “Head lease”), with the
corresponding lease liabilities recognised in note 29 to
these consolidated financial statements, in order to provide
sub-leasing to a separate independent third party (the “Sub-
lease”). The term of the lease and sub-lease entered into is
2 years. All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at
the contract date over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Since the term of the Head lease and Sub-lease are the
same, the Group transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards from ownership of the underlying asset, and
therefore classified the Sub-lease as a finance lease and
derecognised the right-of-use asset related to the Head
lease and recognised the net investment in the sub-lease
as finance lease receivables. The net gain arising between
the derecognised right-of-use asset and the net investment
in the sub-lease is recognised in other gains or losses,
as disclosed in note 8 to these consolidated financial
statements.

23.

B & A B YRR ()
HRAHEESHNFHER - AEEE
ZRBEEEMBENBARS ER &M
H ARSI EOERRERE - RILHE
REEHERRNEREEE - YKOHE
MBS REA SR ER SRR -
AERA M ISR M ESPTIRER - R ILHE
ROEREEEEDANREFEZHE
A HF R R E A B R A RERR

The carrying amount of finance lease receivables and the BEAE REYCIER BREE R FRNEB N
movements during the year are as follows: I
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Carrying amount at 1 January M A1BEMEREE 470 =
New leases HE - 927
Interest income recognised during the  F R RER A F B UK A
year 10 23
Payments received BT (480) (480)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31HMEREE - 470
Analysed into: DA -
Current portion BNHAER 5 - 470
Non-current portion FEBNERER 75 - -
—EC—FF EHEE (ER) BRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 # £2021F 12 A31 B I FE

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

24,

Total minimum lease

23.

b AH B 1B WO R (8D

Present value of minimum

payments lease payments
BRIEHEEFREE BEEESTREE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 20204F 20215 20204F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FET T FET
Finance lease receivables &h& & fE WK
comprises HBE
Within one year —F R - 480 - 470
Less: Unearned finance & : KRB IHE 75
income WA - (10) - -
Present value of minimum &K &~
lease payments RE - 470 - 470

As at 31 December 2020, the interest rate implicit in the

above finance lease is 5.06% per annum.

No aging analysis based on due dates of the finance lease
receivable instalments which are past due (instalments
which are not yet due at the end of the reporting period are
excluded) is presented as the finance lease receivables is

paid in advance.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the Group entered into a lease arrangement with an
independent third party in order to secure the storage
space, details of which the corresponding lease liabilities
was recognised in note 29 to these consolidated financial

statements.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances

Bank balance comprise cash and short-term bank deposits
with a maturity period of three months period or less bearing
prevailing market interest rates. As at 31 December 2021,
the interest rate range from 0.01% to 0.1%. (2020: 0.01%

to 0.1% per annum).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 EZRHMEMNTIE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Trade payables B SN FIR 9,474 4,131
Other payables H M FE IR 75 215
Accrued expenses (Note) e & A (FED) 2,806 4,210
12,355 8,556
Note: Accruals mainly consist of accrued staff costs and accrued izt : BErBAXrEZEEERETE IRARER
professional fee. BXEBER -
All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within TEHAFTBE S EMNFIBRHR —FERNEE K
one year or are repayable on demand. WEREE -
During the year, the credit period granted by the suppliers HEFIREFARTHEER RN TF0E
are generally ranging from 0 to 60 days (2020: O to 60 60H (20204 : 0£60H)
days).
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the NTARZEZEHHEYNE S ENKIER
end of the reporting period presented based on the invoice WMEBRNERRDN ¢
dates:
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
0—-60 days 0-60H 3,810 2,963
61-90 days 61-90H 683 195
Over 90 days B0 H 4,981 973
9,474 4,131

TEC S5 EBEE (ZER) BRAR 137
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

26. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. 88 E &SN AE

Contract assets: BHEE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Arising from performance under BERENESRENREBRSET
exhibition and trade show and BREA
related services 276 -
Payment for exhibition and trade show and related services EERBNESREREEARTETK - 7
is not due from the customer until the exhibition and trade SRREFEEREELE HRE LKIBEAR
show and related services are complete and therefore BEAOFIE - A HNEERRERE
a contract asset is recognised over the period in which SRENIEBIREHE NG L T RBRMH
the exhibition and trade show and related services are BRBIZSEET A EAREER
transferred to the customer to date relative to the services
promised under the contracts.
Contract liabilities: BREME
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Receipt in advance for exhibiton and ~ FEWRERERE ZFREEE B
trade show project 720 743
Receipt in advance for advertisement 8 Ut & & AR 7 2B
service 931 2,241
1,651 2,984

138 WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

26. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(Continued)
Contract liabilities: (Continued)
Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations

unsatisfied at end of year and expected to be recognised as
revenue in:

26. SNEE SHABE@E

RHEROEEFRRBETNEOEE -
W FAHAG A LA T & I8 1R /5 W

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
- 2021 - 20214 N/A 1A 2,984
- 2022 - 20224F 1,651 N/A 13 F
1,651 2,984
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&T
Revenue recognised in the year that RFERNERTAFIEHEERD
was included in contract liabilities W as
at beginning of year 2,264 987
Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: RERNEHEBNERES
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Increase due to operations in the year — FA 4 A A 38 M 1 A 931 2,954
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue & X B EZE U 2,264 987
When the Group receives a deposit at the acceptance ”‘$’§IE&§%J§ &f’f%)?% S R E

of exhibition and trade show project and advertisement
contracts, giving rise to contract liabilities at the start of the
contract until the revenue is recognised.

— =

—EoF5% ZEHEER

TEARKRZRE AHNRERAHMSE
RELXBEEWES ZEEE*” °

(ZR) BRAF
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27. OTHER BORROWING 27. EMER

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FaxT FH&T

Unsecured other borrowing EEAEMER - 7,000

At 31 December 2020, other borrowing included an amount
of HK$7,000,000 advanced from an independent third
party. The borrowing carries fixed interest rate at 12% per
annum, and was repayable on 9 June 2019. On 22 March
2019, the lender agreed to extend the maturity date of the
borrowing to 9 June 2020.

On 9 June 2020, the lender and the Group agreed to
extend the maturity date to 31 December 2020 (the
“Extended period”) and modify the fixed interest rate for the
Extended Period to 24% per annum. On the same date, the
Group repaid HK$3,000,000 of the principal amount. The
debt modification arising from the extended maturity date
and increased interest rate did not result in a substantial
modification and accordingly the Company adopted
modification accounting. Under modification accounting, the
difference between the carrying value of the original loan and
the net present value of the loan under the revised terms
of HK$446,000, discounted at the original effective interest
rate, is recognised as loss on debt modification, is charged
to other gains and losses for the year ended 31 December
2020, as disclosed in note 8 to these consolidated financial
statements.

On 1 January 2021, the Company and the lender has
agreed to further extend the maturity date to 30 October
2021 and revised the interest rate charged onwards to
12% per annum. The debt modification would not result in
a substantial modification and accordingly the Company
would adopt modification accounting. The estimated
financial impact of the debt modification is immaterial and
thus, no gain or loss on debt modification is recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2021. On 31 October 2021,
the Company has fully repaid the borrowing to the lender.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

28. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

On 22 November 2019, the Company and Mr. Lui, the
substantial shareholder of the Company, entered into an
agreement whereby Mr. Lui has agreed to make available
to the Company and the Company has agreed to accept
an unsecured loan facility, containing a repayment on
demand clause, of up to HK$40 million (the “Shareholder
Loan”) during the available period which will expire on 31
December 2021. The Shareholder Loan will bear interest at
2.0% per annum and repayable within 15 months from the
drawdown date.

Although the Shareholder Loan contains a repayment
on demand clause, the carrying value is recorded under
non-current liabilities, as Mr. Lui has confirmed he will not
exercise his right to demand repayment immediately until
the Group has financial capability to do so, which was
estimated to be beyond the term of the loan.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, HK$10,000,000
has been advanced from Mr. Lui. The amount is repayable
from 24 February 2021 to 12 March 2021. The loan was
initially recognised at its fair value, being the present value
of the loan discounted at the prevailing market interest rate.
The difference between the face value of the loan and in the
amount initially recognised of approximately HK$1,378,000
was treated as deemed contribution from the substantial
shareholder and credited to capital reserve accordingly.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
further utilised HK$13,500,000 of the Shareholder Loan.
The amount is repayable on 23 June 2021. Similarly, the
loan was recognised initially at the present value discounted
at the prevailing market interest rate and the difference
between the face value of the loan and the amount
initially recognised, being approximately, HK$1,865,000,
was deemed as capital contribution from the substantial
shareholder and credited to the capital reserve.

—FFH EHEE (EZER) ARAF
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28. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

(Continued)

On 31 December 2020, the Company and Mr. Lui entered
into an extension agreement (the “Extension Agreement”)
which (i) extended the available period of the Shareholder
Loan facility to 31 December 2022 and (i) revised the
repayment date of the loan drawn, which originally falls
fifteen months from the respective drawdown date, by a
further eighteen months from the respective drawdown
date (the “Extended Loan Period”). As a result, the loan will
be repayable from 24 August 2022 to 23 December 2022.
The interest charged during the Extended Loan Period is
2% per annum on the amount of outstanding principal. The
Extension Agreement constituted a substantial modification
on the financial liability and shall be accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original loan and recognition of a new
loan. The original loan as at the debt modification date,
being 31 December 2020, was derecognised and the fair
value of the modified Shareholder loan under the Extended
Loan Period (the “New Debt”) discounted at the prevailing
market interest rate, was recognised. The difference
between the face value of the loan and the fair value of
the New Debt of approximately HK$4,348,000, at the
debt modification date, is deemed as capital contribution
from the substantial shareholder. The balancing amount,
being the difference between the carrying amount of
the original loan and the discounted new debt at market
interest rate, was charged to other gains and losses at debt
modification date of approximately HK$532,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 as disclosed in note 8 to
these consolidated financial statements. The New Debt is
classified as non-current liabilities.

On 31 December 2020, the Company and Mr. Lui also
entered into a supplemental agreement under which Mr.
Lui formally agreed to waive the overriding right for demand
of further security and assurances and/or immediate
repayment of the loans outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

(Continued)

On 6 September 2021, the Company and Mr. Lui entered
into a deed extension and waiver which Mr. Lui agreed to
waive all rights in any outstanding interest accrued under
the Shareholder Loan and Extension Agreement. The debt
modification would not result in a substantial modification
and accordingly the Company would adopt the modification
accounting. The estimated financial impact of the debt
modification is a gain of approximately HK$742,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021, was charged to other gains
or losses, as disclosed in note 8 to these consolidated
financial statements.

On 7 September 2021, the Company repaid HK$1,000,000
to the substantial shareholder. The amount of contract is
modified, thus it resulted in a debt modification. The debt
modification would not result in a substantial modification
and accordingly the Company would adopt the modification
accounting. The estimated financial impact on the debt
modification is a loss approximately to HK$169,000 was
charged to other gains and losses for the year ended
31 December 2021, as disclosed in note 8 to these
consolidated financial statements.

On 21 March 2022, the Company and Mr. Lui entered into
the Second Extension Agreement which (i) extended the
repayment date for further 12 months from the extension
period of the Extension Agreement; (i) incurred the accrued
interest at 2.0% per annum from the date of signing the
Second Extension Agreement to repayment date; (iii)
repaid a partial settlement amounting to HK$3,000,000
on 31 March 2022; and (iv) cancelled the unutilised
loan facilities with effective on 31 March 2022. The debt
modification would not result in a substantial modification
and accordingly the Company would adopt modification
accounting. The estimated financial impact of the debt
modification is a gain of approximately HK$1,337,000.
The amount is not recorded in the current year’s financial
statements and would be recorded in the following year’s
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

28. LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

(Continued)

Movement of the loan from a substantial shareholder during

the year is as follows:

28. FEWMRERE

FRATZRRERESHEROT

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At 1 January ®m1A1H 19,152 8,718
Advance during the year FRBK - 13,500
Repayment during the year FREXR (1,000) =
Deemed contribution from a substantial R/ER & XIEBA KRB EE
shareholder at initial drawdown date R EE - (1,865)
Imputed interest expense (note 9) HEF S (T 2,569 2,615
Deemed contribution from a substantial REREEEFT HHAKEEE
shareholder at debt modification date AR AT & - (4,348)
Charged to other gains or losses at RNEBEERBE MK
debt modification (note 8) Es1a Bk (FI5E8) (573) 532
At 31 December »12H31H 20,148 19,152
The loan from a substantial shareholder are repayable as FTERREFTIZIATHRERE :
follows:
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 20,148 =
More than one year, but not exceeding —F A £ - BNEBBEMRF
two years - 19,152
20,148 19,152
Less: Amount due for settlement B 128 B R E R BiF0R
within 12 months GITREBBEET)
(shown under current liabilities) (20,148) -
Amount due for settlement after R1218 A& & E B BiR0R
12 months - 19,152
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 20. HEAE
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group HZE2020F12A31HILFE - AEEHE
entered into a lease arrangement for storage space with BUFE=ZFRI U GFREEEEERZYE -
an independent third party in order to sub-lease the same A—GFREEEAEI TS —BBLE
tenure to a separate independent third party for a term of =7 HERME - £E—FFBEHNEGRE
two years with further details in note 23 to the consolidated SRR MI5E23 o

financial statements.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEBENEREERFRNEHNAT :
during the year are as follows:

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1BMEREE 340 =

New leases g - 572
Accretion of interest recognised during 4 P RE 52 &9 Fl| B 1% fi1

the year 10 18

Payments R (300) (250)

Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31HREREE 50 340

Analysed into: DR
Current portion BNHAER 50 290
Non-current portion FERNEREE 7> - 50
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

29. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

30.

20. HESE®@

Total minimum lease Present value of minimum

payments lease payments

REHESENHEE REEENRRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 2020%F 20215 20204

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT TR TERT THET

Finance lease receivables ERRERERRE
comprises
Within one year —FR 50 300 50 290
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRMEN - 50 - 50
50 350 50 340
Less: Total future interest expenses & : A 2 F| &5 s 40 58 —* (10) - =
Present value of lease liabilities HEAERE 50 340 50 340
Less: Amount due for settlement B R R REE
within 12 months (shown B HARIE
under current liabilities) BIRRRED
BEET) (50) (290)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 B E 5
12 months (shown under non- FIBGIRRIER
current liabilities) HAMFEEAT) - 50

* The amount is less than HK$1,000.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER AND
A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF

A SUBSIDIARY

The amounts are unsecured, interest free, and repayable on

demand.

- Ze A ,0008 7T ©

30. FEWRREHEQAFZERRR

IR

BERFERERER B RRERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B=&
Movements in the share capital of the Company during the FRARQ B BRAREENT -
year are as follows:
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Authorised: EE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,0000% & i%
HK$0.02 each (2020: 5,000,000,000 H1E0.02/% 7o T A% (20204 -
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each) 5,000,000,000/%
SR EE0.028 LT BAY) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHARE :
432,000,000 ordinary shares of 432,000,0000% & X EI{H0.02/8 7T
HK$0.02 each (2020: 432,000,000 38 AR (20204
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each) 432,000,000/ &% HE &
0.02/8 70 @A%) 8,640 8,640

The movements in authorised and issued share capital of FAXRRENETERBEITRAEEH T

32.

33.

the Company during the year were as follows:

Number of Share
authorised Number of premium
shares issued shares Issued capital account Total
ZERAHE CERARGEE CBAREA RORER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
At 1 January 2020, 20206151A -
31 December 2020, 2020512A318
1 January 2021 and 2021 F1818 R
31 December 2021 2021F12A31H 5,000,000,000 432,000,000 8,640 94,331 102,971

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

The Group did not have any acquisition of subsidiaries for

the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any disposal of subsidiaries for the

years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

32. WHBHKIR A A

HE2021FE K20205FE12A31B IEFE -
AEBWBWBTMAMHBAR -

33. HEKEAF

HE2021F K2020F12A31 B ILFE -
AEEWEREXTMMIBAA -

TEC S5 EBEE (ZER) BRAR

147




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23
January 2015 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive and rewards to eligible participants including:

()  any executive or non-executive director including any
independent non-executive director or any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the
Group;

(i)  any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or
otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects include any
employee or business associate of the Group;

(i) any adviser or consultant (in the areas of legal,
technical, financial or corporate management) to the
Group;

(iv) any provider of goods and/or services to the Group;
and

(v} Any other person who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed to the Group to take up
options (together, the “Participants”).

The Company is entitled to issue options, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme does not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the listing date on
16 February 2015. The Company may at any time refresh
such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue a
circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme does not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders, with such individual and his or her close
associates (or his associates if the individual is a connected
person) abstaining from voting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company within 28 days from the date of
the offer.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which an option was granted, at any time during the option
period after the option has been granted but, in any event,
not longer than 10 years from the date of grant. An option
shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable (to the
extent not already exercised) on the expiry of the option
period.

Options granted may be exercised at any time during the
option period and are to be settled by issuance of the
Company’s shares. The directors may at their absolute
discretion determine the period during which an option may
be exercised, such period to expire not later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the option. The exercise price
is determined by the directors and shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share
on the date of grant, (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of the
share.

The Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Scheme
is adopted, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and options which
are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

All of the share options granted have been cancelled as at
16 October 2019.

—FFH EHEE (EZER) ARAF

4. IR 8 (&)

N EHBHREFT28HA - ARREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 ZZ2021F12 A31H L FE

34.

35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

There were no share options granted during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 and outstanding
number of share option remained Nil as at each of the
reporting period.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly contribution of HK$1,500. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries
in Macau are covered by a government-mandated defined
contribution plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of
retirement benefit would be determined and paid by the
Macau Government. Contributions are generally made by
both employees and employers by paying a fixed amount
on a monthly basis to the Social Security Fund Contribution
managed by the Macau Government. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits is to make
the specified contributions.

Save for the above, the Group has no other obligation.
No forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce
the existing level of contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EXEKRERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in REEEBEERUBRASEE X EBIGEE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern WA BEE A NBEKE - WEBREL
while maximising the return to shareholders through the EERBRAYEMRE2RARERR - &K
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s SEMNEERBERNBE—FHESTE

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net of cash AEEMEAREREREMIRESEEY
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of FREUARARNAHEB AELEZR - B2
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. BITIRA R -

The directors of the Company review the capital structure ARARESTFFRITERERE - ERL
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors B —& D  EFRRERKAREE
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with MR EARBENER - RIBEEAHEBE
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the & ASEBERKRMAKRE - BITHRG
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure KO IAREITHES S ERIRAE
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and AT BT B RE B AN -

share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Based on the information that was publicly available to the BEARRAIAFAESHERNEEES
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as at Frn - MAFHRBE  BIEGEM LM
the date of this annual report, there was sufficient public A3 - AREHERFTPORESEHITRG
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares 25% M R AR RIFRE -

as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHETT

Total borrowings (note) CEXEACIED) 20,148 26,152

Less: Bank balances and cash BRI (10,949) (3,212)

Net debt B 55 9,199 22,940
Total equity (capital deficiency) to RARHEAA

owners of the Company s (BB 85 14,009 (7,522)

Net debt to equity ratio FARERSEE 0.66 (3.05)

Note: Total borrowings represent other borrowing and loan from a Mizk © (ERBEEEMEREEEREER -

substantial shareholder.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. 2T H
Categories of financial instruments SWMIAER

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHEIT

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost B KA RN S REE 38,019 20,614

Financial liabilities cRBeE
Amortised cost B SH R AN 32,503 34,708

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include amount
due from a shareholder, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, trade and other receivables
and deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, other borrowing and loan from a substantial
shareholder. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau
Pataca same as the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk
which materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

During the year, the Group was exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate other borrowing and
loan from a substantial shareholder (see notes 27 and 28 for
details of the borrowing).

The Group is not exposed to any significant cash flow
interest rate risk which may materially affect the Group’s
results of operations in 2021 and 2020.

RT A3

TRlE R EE B R RBUR ()

5 BB
EEmER

AEBRAMOECEERBBNETR
RFEEHE - BEKRERR RIS
HAEE -

AEBES TNFEMERAIEHARERLE R
BERBEARFZENEREREBER -

g

FR - AEEEGHEFEEMERNEE
BREEREENQAFEMNZER(GEE
HEFE - B2 27 %28) -

R20214F 20204 75 [H I £ [ F2 &R
EVEAEERKEEENIMERRER
SFERER o
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collaterals, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables and contract
assets in order to minimise risk, the management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of
its customers’ financial position and condition is performed
on each and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of reporting period, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 46% (2020: 14%) of the total trade receivables of
the Company was due from the largest customer and 77%
(2020: 44%) of the total trade receivables of the Group was
due from the largest 5 customers. Taking into accounts the
creditworthiness of the customers, the credit risk measures
and the historical levels of bad debts, the directors consider
that such concentration of credit risk would not result in
significant credit default exposure to the Group.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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7. SRITAM@
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

37.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As part of Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applied internal credit rating for its customers. Certain
of the Group’s trade receivables are grouped under a
provision matrix based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to past default experience and current past
due exposure of the debtor. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables which are assessed collectively based on

provision matrix as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

RT A3

TREAREEBRRBEE

1= B E B K el {5 2714 (&)

EBAEBEZERRERN D - K&
EHEXFRAANSEETR - AEEH
%?%ﬁ%ﬁﬁuﬁz RIE TR IE LR B R R
B 2 EFEIEARBEENKLH N E ATE
HA 8 Wﬁfﬁ%ﬁl@T SH - TRIREEH
FrEREERR LK E 5 EKFBHTERE
ff)é'ﬂaﬂ’]ﬁﬂ H T520214 & 20204
12 331 B IR R B R AE FE i 1T R B AT AR o

Gross Weighted Allowance Net
carrying average for credit carrying
amount loss rate losses amount
bnE 15 58
IREAE BE=E BEEE AREEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET FET FET
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12H831H
Trade receivables 2 5 IR
Current BIHA 3,220 0.19% (6) 3,214
1 to 30 days past due BHEI1Z=30H 1,663 0.24% (4) 1,659
31 to 90 days past due BmHI31E90H 3,051 0.23% (7) 3,044
91 to 365 days past due ~ #HI91Z=365H 6,603 0.22% (14) 6,589
Over 365 days past due — #IHAE#E365H —
not credit impaired AEBEERE 207 0.39% (1) 206
Over 365 days past due — #IHAE#E365H —
credit impaired HIREERE 9 100% (9) -
14,753 0.28% (41) 14,712
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 H31H
Trade receivables 2 5 RUGIR
Current Bl &R 3,653 0.63% (23) 3,630
1 to 30 days past due BHEI1Z=30H 227 4.41% (10) 217
31 to 90 days past due BHI31Z90H 1,213 3.05% 37) 1,176
91 to 365 days past due  #HI91Z=365H 334 11.32% (38) 296
Over 365 days past due - #HiEBB365H —
not credit impaired REREERE - - - -
Over 365 days past due - #HiEBB365H —
credit impaired HIREEREAE 193 100% (193) =
5,620 5.36% (801) 5,319
“Eo—F4 EHREE (ER) BRAR

=
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-
looking information is used by management of the Group to
assess both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by the management of the Group to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

In determining the ECL of the Group’s other receivables and
financial assets, the management assessed the expected
losses individually by estimation based on historical credit
loss experience, general economic conditions of the relevant
industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment
of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. Based on the result of the
foregoing, no impairment loss of HK$Nil was recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. €@ E@
Financial risk management objectives and policies cREREEEERBEK(E)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= B R B R B E 71 (18)
The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of RE Z2021F &2020F12 318 It F
trade and other receivables and loan receivables during the B B REMEBWHIERERERNE
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as followings: EEBEREESHET
Trade receivables Other receivables
g2 ERWHE Hitb W E
Life-time
ECL Life-time Life-time
(not-credit ECL ECL
impaired) credit credit
impaired impaired impaired Total
2 HFEH

FEER  259ES  25ES
(REE  EEEE SHEFASS

EERE) EERE HE |t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H - 158 800 958
Impairment loss recognised/ B R, (B E) &R
(reversed), net BEEFE 108 193 = 301
Written off (Note) e (B =) - (158) (800) (958)
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 108 193 - 301
Impairment loss (reversed)/ B (Bm) /HERHIR
recognised, net BEEETE (76) 7 - (69)
Written off (Note) s (1) - (191) - (191)
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 32 9 - 41
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the amounts written MizE : HZE2021F12831BIEFE  HRERE
off on trade receivables and other receivables of approximately REVEEREATREFSR @ BHEK
HK$191,000 and HK$Nil, respectively, (2020: approximately IR H A IR M 2 B D R4
HK$Nil and HK$800,000 respectively) as management #$191,000% 7T R T # 7T (20204 = 5l
considered there is no realistic prospect of recovery. #9274 7T K. 800,000/ 7T) °
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the Group has trade receivables
with gross amount of approximately HK$9,000 (2020:
approximately HK$193,000) being credit impaired since the
management of the Group considered these balances are
unlikely to be recoverable or partially recoverable.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
any leading covenants and to ensure that it maintains
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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37. EMIA@®

TRE R EE B R R BUCR ()

1= B2 B2 R a8 21 (4)

MR2021E 128318 » "EBBEE AL
9,000/ 7T (20204F : #J193,000/87T) K&
SREBFELREERE  RARAEE
ERER BT AR E k385 W B % E
KEER o

HRR ZH 77 RERREEFRRER
TREENRNRT  HRITESKNEER
RBRAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 37. eI AE@
Financial risk management objectives and policies SHEREERERBEGE)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEBE 2 ()
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. TRERMNELERRERE - HREAX
The table has been drawn up based on the earliest date SE A BE I B RN RF B HSE - &
at which the Group can be required to pay. For the year E2020F12A31ALFE » TREER
ended 31 December 2020, it has not taken into account 2021 F1ATHEERABENEREAM
of the extension of the maturity of the other borrowing EREEHEARN2021F9A6HEETE
agreed with the lender on 1 January 2021 and the waiver BEREETELZEZRRERNFE - &
of interest of the loan from a substantial shareholder agreed F2021F12A31ALFE » AREER
with the substantial shareholder on 6 September 2021. 2022321 BT EMRAENE R
For the year ended 31 December 2021, it has not taken into ERBHABENEE - WABRRZ
account of the matters included in the Second Extension B AR E MR F R A AR S RBAR
Agreement agreed with the substantial shareholder on 21 T -
March 2022. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.
Weighted More than
average Within 1 year Total Total
effective 1 year or but within undiscounted carrying
rate on demand 2 years cash flows amounts
EFg 1R BBE1F RER
ERFI® FRER BOR2E RERELE REAE
% HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
% TERT TERT TET TET
2021 20214
Non-derivative financial TESHER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER
E 12,355 - 12,355 12,355
Lease liabilities HEAR 5 50 - 50 50
Loan from a substantial FERRER
shareholder 14 22,500 - 22,500 20,148
Total A&t 34,905 - 34,905 32,553

—E—FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021412 A31H L FE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

37. EMIA@®

TRAREERRRBEEE

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) B & 2 ()
Weighted More than
average Within 1 year Total Total
effective 1 year or but within - undiscounted carrying
rate on demand 2 years cash flows amounts
PIAEF 3 15R HE1F KRR
BERA = FREK BAR2E HREnERH FEAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THT FET TET THET
2020 20205
Non-derivative financial kiTESRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables BHREMER
A 8,556 - 8,556 8,556
Lease liabilities HERE 5 300 50 350 340
Other borrowing Hitvfa 5 13 7,700 - 7,700 7,000
Loan from a substantial FTERREX
shareholder 14 - 24,368 24,368 19,152
Total A&t 16,556 24,418 40,974 35,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Fair value hierarchy

The Company did not have any financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Except for the loan from a substantial shareholder, which
initial measured at fair value and subsequent measured
at amortised cost, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values at 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020.

37.

—= —_

=

LRI A@E
TRIAQNVEAE

BEEMEEL N FPEGBHAEE L
BEEREEHAFE

RFEER

M20214 K2020E12 A31H » ANA T
EAMEATFELEUHTENEREER
afE-

AR EEN FE LN FE B A E
EHEEREBH A FE

BRI IR A T ER 2 kA IR K AR
ENFERFERIN 0 R2021F12 831
HK20205F12 A31 8 » A& B AR A,
B AR eR T ARAEEREEAT
BEYEEAEZE -

FEH EHEE (ZER) ARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

38.

HREETHELENEEHR

TR AKEERETDELNEER
BHE DeRReRIReZEY -8
MERPEENEEDERESREBIARK
Reng CRIBAIBIBR/AIEHE
FARERERATAERERDNRER

=
£ -°

Loan from a
Other substantial
borrowings shareholder
(including (including
interest interest Lease
payable) payable) liabilities Total
HttfgER  FERRER
(BREEARE) (BREEAHE) HEEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THT TR THL
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 10,000 8,718 - 18,718
Deemed capital contribution RIELERH

surplus - (6,213) - (6,213)
Charged to other gains or losses  REKE BB E A

at debt modification (note 8) W B E NG

(Fizx8) 446 532 - 978
Recognition of lease liabilities BRAEERRE - - 572 572
Interest expense (note 9) F 8 F % (F1559) 1,027 2,615 18 3,660
Financing cash flows BMERERE (4,473) 13,500 (250) 8,777
At 31 December 2020 and 1 P2020612A318 &

January 2021 2021F1A1H 7,000 19,152 340 26,492
Credited to other gains and REBEERTAEM

losses at debt modification Yoz K B 18 (FifaE8)

(note 8) - (573) - (573)
Interest expense (note 9) F 8 A (i) 700 2,569 10 3,279
Financing cash flows MERSRE (7,700) (1,000) (300) (9,000)
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 - 20,148 50 20,198
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors of the Company. Details of their emoluments are
disclosed in note 12.

Mr. Lui, a substantial shareholder and a non-executive
director of the Company, has granted an unsecured loan
facility of up to HK$40,000,000 during the available period
which will expire on 31 December 2022. On 21 March 2022,
there is the Second Extension Agreement which cancelled
the unutilised loan facility with effective on 31 March 2022.
The Facility bears an interest of 2% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, an aggregate
amount of HK$22,500,000 (2020: HK$23,500,000) of the
Facility has been drawn down by the Company which has
been utilised to repay the outstanding loans due and owing
to independent third parties of the Group.

39. EXEMLIRS

B EMBRERMBEEIN  NEERSE
NEANTEREH TS

AEBETEEEBABRARBES -
FH 2 FIERMT 1 285R -

AR EERRBRIENITESELETEE
FEIR (&R 2022F12 A31 B f@m) 12t
& 7] #40,000,0005% 7T B E TR B R
& o FA2022%E3A218 - F-RERWE
R HEABAENRRE - 520229434
S1THRBEM - ZBMERFFNE2%TE °

REE2021F12A31HILFE © A2 A
AN E A HIZER22,500,000% 7T (2020
% : 23,500,000/ 7T) * ZERBECHER
EEINPRIS FAERBLE=HHKR
BEER -

—FFH EHEE (EZER) ARAF




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

40. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

General information of subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of

the reporting period are set out as follows:

40. T EMB A TFHIE
M B A B — R E

RBEHRNARB EENBRAFES
planR

Issued and
Country/ Class of fully paid
place of shares held/ share capital/
incorporation registered Proportion of ownership interest and voting power registered
B oroperation  capital held by the Company capital  Principal activities
AR EEfTR
gE0%/ fERG/ ARRRENERER BERE/
WRAREH ] AMERER REELA iftEx  IEXE
2021 2020
0215 20005
Direct Indirect Direct Indlirect
EE B B i
% % % %
Grand Oceans (HK) Limited HongKong  Ordinary 100 - 100 - HK$1  Provision of management
sevice
3B (ERERAR Bk EER BT RUEEERHE
(Ocean Media (Hong Kong) Limited HongKong ~ Ordinary - 100 - 100 HK$100  Sales of magazines and
provision of magazines
advertising service
BEERARAA B Lk 0BT HERERRES
B R
TBC (note) HongKong ~ Ordinary - 67 - 67 HK$10,000  Provision of exhibttion and
trade show service
B R 3 () B EER 1000087 REREREZRERS
Tiance Cultural Communication  Macau Ordinary - 99 - 99 MOP100,000  Sales and distrioution of
Limited publications and sales of
print and online
advertising space
AR ERARAF A Lak 1000008275%  HERFTHY  THE
DRIk LR ENE
Note: TBC is a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mt : BLER B AARR AR ES ML 89T

N

The subsidiary has a financial reporting year end dated on 31
March in accordance with the local statutory requirements,
which is not coterminous with the Group. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group were prepared based on the
management accounts of these subsidiaries for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

one of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

40. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company,
which in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion of the
directors result in particulars of excessive length.

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has
material non-controlling interest

The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned

40. FEMB A TFHE(E

M2 RN —RER )

EREINARRBMBAR  ARAEER
B EBREAKEXELEE - EFR
o REEHMHE AR FEHERFE
BRILE ©

BEEAFZRRENF 2 AWEA TN

TRINRAEEERE AR RN

subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling ZEWBARIMES :
interest:
Proportion of
ownership
interest and
Place of voting power held
incorporation and by the Company Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business 2021 and 2020 non-controlling interest non-controlling interest
20215 20205
P UNGIEE ]
A R R NEFRER
L) PNCEEE EXHH FREH  SREFEREZRNESR Rt FERER
2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 2020F 20215 2020F
TBC Hong Kong 67% (462) (215) (306) 156
B FE BB

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BRASERGEAFERERNHBER
AN BEERBEHN T - LTHEE
I Z R EAK B R RIMIER 25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021412 A31H L FE

40. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. TEMNE A AFE @

(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

MR ATN—ARER (8

TBC BLEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Current assets MEEE 2,346 2,709
Non-current assets EMEEE 174 290
Current liabilities mBAE (3,447) (2,475)
Non-current liabilities ERBARG - (50)
Equity attributable to owners PAYNGCIE 2 DN ()
of the Company T (621) 318
Non-controlling interests of TBC B R BRI AR R = (306) 156
Revenue Wz 7,255 8,195
Expenses F X (8,656) (8,847)
Loss and total comprehensive expense &8 & 2 [ F Sk 4258 (1,401) (652)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

40. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

40. X EMBE A AFEGE)

MR ATN—ARER (8

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

TBC(#& BLEE (E)
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Loss attributable to owners of the RARHE AELEE
Company (939) (437)
Loss attributable to the non-controlling  3E12 A% 4 25 FE 15 E5 18
interest (462) (219)
Loss and total comprehensive expense R E1E & 2 T X 4258
for the year (1,401) (652)
Net cash outflow from operating KL EBMBHRE M FEE
activities (636) (958)
Net cash inflow from investing KREESABESRAFE
activities 805 564
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing B & EENFISE S CRE),RA
activities HRE (300) 230
Net cash outflow R R FEE (131) (164)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F12 A31H L FE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 41.

MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

Statement of financial position of the Company

KA BARRR RSB

(a) AQXTRHBARRRE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Office equipment ENES L 5 49
Interests in subsidiaries NN 105 105
Equity instruments at fair value BT EFAHEAM
through other comprehensive ZHE KA
income =t - -
110 154
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE WP B A B 3R T8 15,841 13,170
Amount due from a shareholder JE I A% B IR 539 529
Prepayment and other receivables TE A R I Eo A pE
WSRIE 283 26
Cash and cash equivalents RekIREEEY 83 89
16,746 13,814
Total assets BEEHAE 16,856 13,968
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves FNUNETE 2PN
attributable to owners of the EXRHE
Company
Share capital A& 8,640 8,640
Reserves 1 (16,749) (27,106)
Capital deficiency BAE 4 (8,109) (18,466)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

41, R T B IR R R K 1k e 2 B (D)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) 72T BB RER(E)
(Continued)
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
LIABILITIES 8E
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE AT BfS /BB 1~ B R IE 2,706 2,706
Accruals and other payables EETBR R EMME
~ERIAE 2,111 3,576
Other borrowing HMER - 7,000
Loan from a substantial shareholder ~ F EBARE &K 20,148 =
24,965 13,282
Non-current liabilities FRBEMR
Loan from a substantial shareholder ~ FEREE - 19,152
Total liabilities BE@E 24,965 32,434
Total equity and liabilities EmRkaERRE 16,856 13,968
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE(AEFHE),BEEFE (8,219) 532
Total assets less total liabilities BERBERBERSE (8,109) (18,466)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of EE2M2022F3 A 31 B #it W0 K

directors on 31 March 2022. o
Hung Yuen Kin Lui Man Wah
RER 2 B X E
Director Director
EFE BFE

TEC S5 EBEE (ZER) BRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021412 A31H L FE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

(b) Reserve of the Company

41, KT B IR R R K 1k e 2 B (D)

(b) ADAFEE

Share FVTOCI Capital  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BRATERA
Hit2m
BipEE g it ERGE ZiER =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2020, as restated 14202051818
883| 94,331 (1,423) 1378 (124,000) 09,714)
Loss and total comprehensive ~~ FREERZAERY
expense for the year ek - - - (3,605) (3,605)
Deemed capital contribution RIEEALE = 1,423 = (1,423) =
Reclassification upon equity PEATEFT AL
instrument at fair value through 2 EMEMNBRATE
other comprehensive income WEBERIE
written off - - 6,213 - 6,213
At 31 December 2020 and R2020512A318 K
1 January 2021 2021F1A1A 94,331 - 7,591 (129,028) (27,106)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FEREF R 2 AN
income for the year s - - - 10,357 10,357
At31 December 2021 120215128318 94,331 - 7,501 (118,674) (16,749)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021412 A31H L FE

42. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(@) After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the world. It has
brought about additional uncertainties in the Group’s
operating environment and may impact the Group’s
operations and financial position. The Group has been
closely monitoring the impact from COVID-19 on the
Group’s businesses and has commenced to put in
place various measures. Based on the information
currently available, the directors confirm that there
has been no material adverse change in the financial
and operating position of the Group up to the date of
this report. The Group will pay close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and perform
further assessment of its impact and take relevant
measures.

(b) On 27 January 2022, Excellent Success Investments
Limited as the placing agent (the “Excellent”) and the
Company entered into a placing agreement (the “2022
Placing Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company
proposes to offer for subscription and the Excellent
has agreed to procure not less than six placees on
a best effort basis to subscribe for up to 86,400,000
placing shares (the “New Placing Shares”) at a price
of HK$0.09 per New Placing Share. The New Placing
Shares will be allotted and issued pursuant to the
General Mandate on 3 March 2022. For further details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
27 January 2022.

On 3 March 2022, the placing was completed in
accordance with the terms of the 2022 Placing
Agreement. An aggregate of the New Placing Shares,
representing approximately 16.67% of the issued
share capital of the Company immediately after
completion of the placing, have been successfully
placed to not less than six Placees at the price
of HK$0.09 per the New Placing Share. The net
proceeds from the placing, after deduction of all
relevant expenses (including but not limited to placing
commission, legal expenses and disbursements), are
approximately HK$7.6 million. The Company intends
to use the net proceeds for expenditure for current
business development of the Group. For further
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 3 March 2022.

42. MEBMENEH

R 20204 ¥ 18 35201 94F ¥ 2L B AR B
ER(COVID-198%E D2 BER
WHERDHRBEANE R — XA
bRt h e - EAKEBNKE
IRIBERFBINGTHAREZE » WA
REFEAEBENEERPEMR
AREE—ERYERCOVID-19%
AEBEBKNTE  WEHBEHR
EIEEM - RIBEBEER - EEHE
REEAREBY  NEENTE
MR SRR | E KR &L - K
EEEZEYEEICOVID-19/8 3 Hy 3
B Wi — PR EEFE REEE
RAtE T o

N2022%F 1278 - EEKIRER
RARI(TSEERK]  EARENRIE)
BN BR] M BE & ik ([ 20224 B2
EWzEl o Bt AQFEIRE N
HRE MEEAEKNERBRBHE
NEEREDNDRNBEAERRARE
F% T B & % 17 0.0978 T R B & R AR
%% 86,400,000 it & M1 ([ # /D
ERMm ) - TR ERM ER202243
ASHBRE — MR ERERET - B
BELZHE B2HARTHEA
20221 A27AMI A -

MR2022F3A3H @ i EFEZRIE
2022 B & 5 5 UK ST o ¥l
ERMERXLBEBRESHETK
BHARRNRBEITIRAL16.67%)
B SRIEERMD0.098THE
WRKIWEEF R RNEBEEA o
RRESHEZAERBFEALTR
—HEER(BREETRERREES
Be  ZERERAMREER) NS
7,600,000/ 7T - XA FH B FAE
HBFBRAEASEBEAEBER
ZXH c BEEEZHE  BREA
ANEHHA2022F3A3E A -

43. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 43. HEHFRES KRR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and FAEBMBBRN2022F3A31 R EESE
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 March BB RT3 o
2022.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEHBHRE

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
In HK$’000 FBITHR 20214 20204 20194F 20184 20174F
(Restated)
(& &E7)
Revenue g 61,128 29,866 20,838 14,785 29,734
Profit/(loss) before tax BT (BB 22,851 (3,025)  (39,527)  (34,370)  (22,677)
Total comprehensive income/ FRZEWKZE,
(expenses) for the year (A4 21,196 (3,036)  (41,014)  (38,371)  (17,368)
SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREEME
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
In HK$’000 BAF8 T HIR 20214 20204 20194 20184 20174
(Restated)
=27l
Total assets BERE 49,779 30,756 16,626 46,095 64,892
Total liabilities BERE 35,859 38,032 27,079 21,252 6,436
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (AR FE 13,920 (7,276) (10,453 24,843 58,456
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